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INTRODUCTION.

In consequence of certain grave charges having been
preferred in regard to the management and general appear-
ance of the Toronto General Hospital, in a letter published
in the Colonist of the 24th of March, 1855, and signed “A
Medical Student,” the Trustees of that Institution resolved
at a meeting held on the 27th of the same month, “that in
order to give the party assailing the management of the
Hospital, an opportunity of establishing his allegations, they
would hold a meeting on the 29th of March, at 12 o’clock
noon.” To this meeting the attending Plrysicians of the In-
stitution,as well as members of the profession throughout the
city wera invited. The paper in which the announcement was
made, contained a letter from the trastees, signed by Mr.
Brent, the Secretary of the Board, expressing the great
indignation with which they had read the false and calum-
nious statement of the management of the Institation, over
the signature of “A Medical Student”; and also a letter
signed Vzriras, and endorsed by mnineteen Students
whose names were given in full ; characterizing the letter
of ¢ Medical Student” as a tissue of untruths.

On the morning of the 29th, the Board room of the Hospi-
tal was crowded, chiefly by students and professional
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gentlemen, and the trustees commenced an investigatiom,
which lasted during that and the two following days.
The trustees present were Hon. Dr. Widmer, James Beaty,
Esq., and J. G. Bowes, Esq., M. P. P. The following re-
port of the three days’ examination which ensued, appeared
substantially in the columns ofthe Globe and the Colonist at
the time. The third day’s proceedings were somewhat
condensed, but enough was then given to present the case
{ully before the public and more than is usually given in a
newspaper re-port of such an enquiry. In revising that
report, however, for publication in another form, I have
given ¢n exlenso certain portions of the proceedings, which
I, at that time,considered unnecessary to a correct under-
standing of the question, and have supplied in full, the
lctters which were then merely referred to. As a chron-
icler simply, of the statements publicly made before the
trustees, it would be altogether unprofessional to offer one
single remark here, either in regard to the manner in which
that enquiry was proceeded with, or to the amount of evi-
dence adduced to substantiate the charges made against
the Institution. These matters the public will, by a peru-
sal of this more ample report, determine for themselves,
if they have not already done so. [ therefore submit it
with all respect, as a faithful record of that memorable
three days’ investigation.

G. P. URE.



REPORT.

ToroxTo, THURSDAY, 291H March, 1855,

A public meeting was held this day in the Board room of the Toronto
Geeneral Hospital, to consider and examine into certain charges against the
trustees, resident surgeon, and domestics of that Tnstitution, made in a letter
published in the Colonist of the 24th March inst, and signed “a Medical
Student.” Hon. Dr. Widmer, James Beaty, Esq., and J. G. Bowes, Esq.,
three of the trustees, were present. At a previous meeting the trustees had
instructed their Secretary, J. W. Brent, Esq., to reply to the letter of “a
Medical Student,” and to express their great indignation at the false apd
calumnious statements therein contained. They also resolved that, in order
to' give "the party assailing the management of the Hospital an oppor-
tunity of establishing his allegations, they would hold a meeting in the
Hospital at noon on the 29th March, to which meeting the . attending physi-
cians of the Institution, as well as the members of the profession throughout
the city, were invited. The Board room was consequently crowded, princi-
pally by students and professional gentlemen.

Some general remarks having been made amongst the trustees as to the
propriety of Mr. Sheriff Jarvis taking the chair,

Mr. Sheriff Jarvis said he did not intend to take any part in the proceed-
ings, as he though{ when complaints were made, such as those now preferred
against the Hospital, it was the duty of the trustees to enquire into them, and
if there were good grounds for the complaints, let the proper course be taken
to have them remedied. But if, on the other hand. the complaints were
found to be frivolous and vexatious, let the trusteestell the public so. How-
ever, be did not feel justified in taking any partin the investigation. He did
not think the public, or he, as an individual, had any right to interfere in the
proceedings. I was elear that they had not the power to take evidence on
@ath ; but if any voluntary statements.could be made to the trustees, it would
Le a3 well that they should be taken.
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Mr. Bowes said he had intended to move that Mr. Sheriff Jarvis should take
the chair, but the objections that he had made were valid, and therefore he
would not press that duty upon him. The trustees were desirous to have
everything sifted to the bottom, and if any change could be made to promote
the interests of the Institution, the trustees would very cheerfully do it. If
a ¢“Medical Student” is correct in the charges he has made, he (Mr. Bowes)
was sure the trustees would be the very first parties to come forward and
remedy the evils. The trustees had never themselves observed anything of
the Lind so strongly stated by the writer of the letter alluded to, though they
had examined pretty regularly ; but, of course, it was expected that the
¢ Medical Student” who bad written the letter, had information in regard to
existing abuses which the trustees had not. If he had, he (Mr. Bowes) hoped
he would Jave the honesty and boldness to come forward and state every-
thing that he knew. No matter who was the delinquent, they wanted to find
him out. Mr. Bowes concluded by moving that Dr. Widmer talke the chair.

Dr. Wipyer said he did not think it right that he or any of the trustees
should take the chair. The trustees were implicaled, as well as other parties
connected with the Institution, and they could not conduct this investigation
without sitting as judges in their own case.

The honorable gentleman’sseruples were not considered valid, however, and
he consented to preside, and Mr. Brent acted as secretary.

Mr. Bowes suggested that the questions of enquiry should be put and
answered in writing. He then moved that the letters be read, commencing
with the letter of the 24th.

Mr. BrENT read the following letter:—

(Zo the Editor of the Colonist.)

¢ Sir,—Will you permit me through the columns of your paper to call the
attention of the public to an evil which has grown grey in sin, and has
reached a climax demanding speedy adjustment: I mean the manner in whick
¢ The Toronto General Hospital” is now managed. I have wondered repeat-
edly, with many others, at the remissness of the trustees ; and why it is, they
do not correct the loose and flagrant mismanagement which I am sure they
are avare exists, since the matter has been repeatedly pressed upon their at-
tention. It is only a few weeks ago that a man by the name of Burns, whose
duty it is to wait upon the patients, and in their turn present them to the at-
tending physicians, was brought before the Police Magistrate for brutally ill-
using a colored man. It was shown by Mr. Lennon (a Medical Student) that
this Barns had, without any provocation, grossly and wantonly maltreated
this poor fellow; -and that in the act, he could be prompted by no motive, but
the cruelty and relentless heartlessness which he saw him so frequently
manifest towards the suffering and afflicted, upon many other occasions. The
Police Magistrate very properly fined him 20s. and costs, with a severs and
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withering rebuke to his inhumanity; and expressed a hope that he would be
dismissed from the Institution. This is not a solitary or isolated instance of
this man’s conduct; his cruelty and ruthlessness are proverbial among stu-
dents. If it were necessary I could cite many other instances in support of
these allegations. Aund with all these glaring verities staring us in the face,
which in loud and piercing accents call for his dismissal, he is still retained
in the Hospital to continue to perpetrate outrages upon the persons of the pa-
tients ; and yet, forsooth, in justification of his demeanour he states the phy-
sician will give him a character. What kind of a character he deserves, from
the above facts, let your readers judge. It is self-evident that the resident
physician endorses his conduct, not only by retaining him in the Hospital,

ERRATA.

In page 68, for“ I hava been connected with the Hospital for over 15 years,”
read,

T have been connected with Hospitals, &e.

In page 73, for «Dr, Bovell here said, in qnswer to Dr. Aiking, read,

pr. Rowell here said, &e: AN

given Or nob ; 1t Seems, 1'STY, TO TESE UPULL Gl YULOIAL Uh LTI 1isk y e sme
takes care, so far as I know, rigorously to enforce and interpose her anthority.
1t would be impossible, in one letter, to give even a faint exposition of the
corruption which exists and stalks forth in open day in this house of sin. ¥
do not Delieve there is another similar institution in all America, where
greater wrongs are perpetrated, or more distortion of kimdness exists. It is
50 filthy, that it is best known among those who walk the wards by the appel-
lation of the “ L——y Hospital;” and it is only mentioned to sneer and
ridicule it as a fountain of moral pollution. The time spent by the student
is considered worse than squandered ; no remuncration is received to com-
pensate for the loss of the £2, much less their time ; and were it not that our
Colleges demand a twelve manths’ hospital attendance, few, if any students
would visit it, but to learn how much misery and disease are angmented
within its walls. I am in poseession of a great many incidents to which Imay
draw the attention of the puhlic again, if these wrongs be not speedily re



6

Mr. Bowes said he had intended to move that Mr. Sheriff Jarvis should take
the chair, but the objections that he bad made were valid, and therefore he
would not press that duty upon him. The trustees were desirous to have
everything sifted to the bottom, and if any change could be made to promote
the interests of the Institution, the trustees would very cheerfully do it. If
o “Medical Student” is correct in the charges he has made, he (Mr. Bowes)
vras sure the trustees would be the very first parties to come forward and
remedy the evils. The trustees had never themselves observed anything of
the kind so strongly stated by the writer of the letter alluded to, though they
hod examined prebty regularly ; but, of course, it was expected that the
« Medical Student” who bad written the letter, hadl inforroation in regard to__

) . i eiee esun nas growL grey I sin, and has
Bed a climax demanding speedy adjustment: I mean the manner in which
he Torvonto General Hospital” is now managed. I have wondered repeat-
1y, with many others, at the remissness of the trustees ; and why it is they
&o not correct the loose and flagrant mismanagement which I am sure’ they
are aware exists, since the matter has heen repeatedly pressed upon their at—\
tention. It is only a few wecks ago that a man by the name of Burns, whose
duty it is to wait upon the patients, and in their turn present them to) the at-
tending physicians, was hrought before the Police Magistrate for hrutally ill-
using a colored man. It was shown by Mr. Lennon (a Medical Student) that
this Barns had, without any provocation, grossly and wantonly maltreated
this poor fellow; -and that in the act, he could be prompted by no motive, but
the cruelty and relentless heartlessmess which he saw him so fl‘equ(;ntly
manifest towards the suffering and afflicted, upon many other occasions. The
Police Magistrate very properly fined him 20s. and ¢osts, with a severs and
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withering rebuke to his inhumanity; and expressed 2 hope that he would be
dismissed from the Institution. This is not a solitary or isolated instance of
this man’s conduct; his cruelty and ruthlessness are proverbial among stu-
dents. If it were necessary I could eite many other instances in support of
these allegations. And with all these glaring verities staring us in the face,
which in loud and piercing accents call for his dismissal, he is still retained
in the Hospital to continue to perpetrate outrages upon the persons of the pa-
tients ; and yet, forsooth, in justification of his demeanour he states the phy-
gician will give him a character. What kind of a character he deserves, from
the above facts, let your readers judge. It is self-evident that the resident
physician endorses his conduct, not only by retaining him in the Hospital,
but also from his refusal, since this occurrence, to permit the poor to have
their teeth extracted. Now, Mr. Editor, let me ask, who will perform these
surgical operations, and where, if not in the Hospital ? The resident surgeon
says, they must go to the dentist; but, few of them have 2s. Gd. to pay for his
professional services ; and if they have not, what then? I presumeitisa
matter of indifference to him; he would sleep none the less sound for it. Is
this fact to go abroad, that in ¢ The Toronto General Hospital” a poor man
cannot have a tooth extracted ; it would be a disgrace to our city. Again,
one of the women who has charge of the male patients, betrays a disposition
similar to that of Burns, and exhibits a heart as callous and impervious to
the appeals of common humanity. Her coarseness, inselence and rude treat-
ment are t00 notoricus to every observer to need comment. It is a short time
ago that this woman solemnly asseverated in the hearing of the students, that
if the then attending physician admitted a patient against whom she had some
personal pique, “she would be the death of him.” Whether or not she has
carried this threat into execution I have not learned, but from my knowledge
of her, I have reason to fear. It is no use to order any particular regimen
for the sick, for it seems to rest wholly with this woman, whether it shall be
given or not ; it seems, I say, to rest upon the volition of her will ; and she
takes care, so far as I know, rigorously to enforce and interpose her authority.
It would be impossible, in one letter, to give even a faint exposition of the
corruption which exists and stalks forth in open day in this house of sin. ¥
do not believe there is another similar institution in all Awmerica, where
greater wrongs are perpetrated, or more distortion of kimdnoss exists. It is
so filthy, that it ig best known among those who wall the wards by the appel-
lation of the “ L——y Hospital;” and it is only mentioned to sneer and
ridicule it as a fountain of moral pollution. The time spent by the student
is considered worse than squandered ; no remuncration is received to com-
pensate for the loss of the £2, much less their time ; and were it not that our
Colleges demand a twelve manths’ hospital attendance, few, if any students
would visit i, but to learn how much misery and disease are angmented
within its walls. Iam in poscession of a great many incidents to which Imay
draw the attention of the puhlic again, if these wrongs be not speedily re
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dressed. I hope this will have the effect of awakening the attention of the,
public, and causing a spirit of enquiry to be aroused, that will reach every
extremity of the evil, and that a medicine, potent enough to reach the foun-
dation of the disorder, may be applied, that death to the parts may be ar-
rested.
Yours, &e.,
A Mepicar STUDENT.”

The letter having been read, James Dizon, a medical student came forward
and said he was the writer of that letter. Some of the charges he was him-
self cognizant of, others of them he had been informed of by students attend-
ing the Hospital, whose names he was not at present at Iiberty to give, bud
who, he had no doubt, would come forward to substantiate what they knew
of the charges. He was as willing fo come forward and state what he knew
publicly, as he was to make the charges in the letter. It wasa recognised
principle in philosophy, that a man’sactions were neither good nor bad, aside
from the motive which prompted him to perform those actions. He was sure
that he was not prompted to write that letter by bad motives, and, therefore,’
had no hesitation in coming forward, not only to acknowledge having done’
s0, but to substantiate the statements therein made.

Mr. Bowes—How long have you been studying your profession? My
reason for putting that question is to ascertain what means you have had of
acquiring that knowledge in reference to this Institution, which other students
attending the Hospital have not. I wish to see whether other medical students
will coincide in the statements you have made.

Mr. Drxon.—T have been studying medicine about eight months.

Question.—How long have you been attending this Hospital ?

Answer.—I have no ticket out, but have come here occasionally.

Q. —Have you a ticket taken out for the Hospital?

A.~—1 have not a ticket taken out for this session.

Q. —Have you the information, put forth in regard to the management of
the Hospital, from your own observation, or from information derived from
others?

A.—1I have it from both sources. Some portions of if I have witnessed my-
self, and other portions I have from others.

Q.—What i3 the name of the nurse who is alluded to in your letter ?

A~—As that is a fact T was not myself cognizant of, I do not choose to
answer to the name.

Mr. Sheriff Jarvis said if it was the desire of the frustees to elicit all the
particulars in connexion with this matter, he would humbly submit that they
were beginning at the wrong end._If struck him that it would be much bettex
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to pursue the course faken in a Court of Justice, and allow the genilemnan to
make his statements without interruption; and then let him be cross-ques-
tioned upow that statement. The questions would naturally grow out of the
accusations. It would then be for the trustees to say whether these accusa-
tions had heen verified. Some of these charges, be says, are made upon his
own knowledge, others of them are given on hearsay evidence. If he cannot
substantiate from his own observations and that of witnesses, the charges he
has made, then the whole of his statements will go for nothing. Let him,
however, make his statement and let it be taken down and signed, and then,
on the part of the trustees, let any question be put to him which may be sug-
gested by that testimony. This appeared the more correct mode of procedure=

- Mr. Bowes said he would rather some other party should conduet the in-

vestigation. As a trustee he was rather there tohear the accusations brought
forward. He bad no doubt that the frustees were prepared to take any
course that wounld most fully elicit the truth.-

Mr. Dixox said, the spirit that prompted me to come forward was not a bad
one. I have nothing against any of the persons connected with the institution
personally, they have never done me any wrong, I am sure. I have alrcady
stated distinetly that some of the facts I was personally cognizant of. I
expect the parties from whom I got the information will come forward, and
answer to their part of the charge. I think, therefore, it would be better to
permit me to make the statements I have to make, and then any question may
be put to me that may be thought necessary.

Mr. Beary said the only object the trustees had in view was to elicit all the
facts in the case. They had Mr. Dixon’s statement already hefore them in
that letter. If he had anything further to say, they were willing to hear it;
then they would proceed to the examiﬁation; their ohject was to arrive at
the truth, and nothing but the truth.

Mr. Drxox said with regard to the first statement in the letter, that, in re-
ference to Durns, I can not state exactly the day of the month, bul it was in
the month of January. I came up here to see Dr. Paget examined at the
Board. I went into the Surgery, and there were guite a number of students
inside ; I cannot be sure, but I think that Dr. Bovell was there. Dr.Cluke
was there, and either Dr. Bovell or some other Dr. authorized one of the stu-
dents to bleed a patient ; T went out to see the operation. The student bled
the patient, and when he had done so, the patient fainted away ; the student
held him up in his arms on a ¢hair ; Dr. Clarke came forward and dirccted
the patient to be laid upon his back on the floor. I then went away and re-
turned in a short time. When I came back to see how the patient was doing,
one of the students was applying a Lottle of ammonia to the patient’snostrils,
I felt-the patient’s hands; his extremities were cold, and the tips of his fingers
were blue. I put my hand on the region of his heart, ond the action had ap-
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parently ceased, and there was a cold clammy sweat upon his face; there
seemed to be a cold spasmodic shuddering running through his whole framg.
Just as I was looking at him, Burns came forward with a pail of water in ]:\‘15
hand, and threw a part of it upon the patient, and it was dashed all over his
clothes. He was in the act of throwing the remainder of it, when a nurse
came forward and prevented him from throwing it. Burns then took the
patient up in his arms by the shoulders and pushed him outside the door. I
went away and came hack in a litile while, and the patient was still lying
outside in the cold, shuddering.

Dr. CrargE.—Was the patient not brought out to the verandah to get the
fresh air?

Mr. Drsox.—I do not think he was brought out for any purpose of thab
kind. -

Dr. Crarke.~I say the man was brought out to get the fresh air, a circum-
stance that frequently occurs.

Dr. BoverL said he rose at this stage of the examination, to say that the
young gentleman should take very good care what he said, because he (Dr.

Bovell) could say distinctly that/he was not in the surgery at,the time allud-
ed to.

Mr. BeaTy hoped the witness would be allowed to proceed, and when the
evidence was taken down, any gentleman present would have an opportunity
of correcting the errors into which the witness may bave fallen.

Mr. Bowes bere said he should like to know, from any of the faculty
present, what course was generally pursued in such cases.

Dr. Corrrr suid they all knew very well that he had a large practice in
the city, and he could say that it was an invariable~cnstom if he bled a pa-
tient to bring him out to the fresh air, and if it was a heavy person he must
be dragged out the best way possible.

Mr. DrxoN resumed.  Upon another occasion I was here, I cannot exactly
say when, but I think it was in the month of October. I came out of the
surgery and went towards the door. A poor man whom I considered to be a
patient, came in, when Burns came forward and lifted his hand and knocked
off his hat. He struck it with such force that it went against the wall on the
other side. Tt was knocked off with violence. Upon another occasion, I was
up stairs, where there was a cousiderable number of students, I think from 30
to 40, and while there, one of the nurses came up and announced that a med-
ical student was at the door wishing to kuow where the studeatsfrom Victoria
College were. She ushered him in among the students, and in doing so,
made some taunting remarls to him, and put her hand up towards his face o’
such a manner as made the impression upon my mind that she was dronk.-—
I thought it very unbecoming in her to act so. I thought from the way she
put the guestion that the student had asked where the students from Vig
toria College were.
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Dr. Ricearpson.—Do you believe that the woman was drunk ?

Mr. Drxox,—The impression made upon my mind was that the woman was
drunk. )

Dr. RicaarnsoN.—I only asked the question becanse I consider it too grave
& matter that the character of & woman should be destroyed at one blow.

Mr. BexTLEY.—Do you kuow that one of the students made the remark at
the time, that the woman had acted very imprudently, and that had she done
so in Montreal Hospital, she would have been dismissed.

Mr. Dixox.—I am satisfied that this remark was made at the time, but the
name of the student who said g0, I do not remember ot the moment.

Mr. Bevtrey suggested that it would be quite suficient for the purpose the
trustees had in view, to take such notes as were necessary for their own
guidance, and depend upon the report given by those parties who were here
to represent the Press. It would save & great amount of trouble, and the
evidence when taken in full would he more satisfactory.

Dr. O’Briex said that any person who had attended » magisterial investi-
gation would understand that the magistrale would stop the individual giving
evidence until he had taken down the sentence. In this way there was no
difficulty in giving the evidence correct.

Mr. Bowns.—I wish you to say whether you are the author of the letter
which appeared in the Colonist, signed ¢ Mcdical Student ?”

My, Dixox—I1 am. )

Mr. Beary said he was desirous to arrive at the truth. Much as he ad-
mired the cadid way in which the young gentleman had come forward, it did
not alter the fact that the charges in that letter were very serious. He was
personally acquainted with a number of the parties in the Hospital, particu-
larly with the matron, and the gentleman who superintends the building. If
these charges were true, he would regret it exceedingly. As onc of the
trustees, he would like to know about the immorality that is practised in the
Hospital. He considered it an act of kindness upon Mr. Dixon’s part to come
forward, but he wished now that ke would give testimony to corroborate that
part of the letter in relation to the immorality that is practised.

Mr Drxox.—1I explained, in a subsequent letter to the Colenist, what T neant
by moral pollution. I said there that I meant moral obliguity.

Dr. RicuarnsonN said he did not know about these charges until he came
to the meeting. He had not seen the letter in the Colonist until he saw if
here, nor had he seen any other letter cxcept that which appeared in the
Colonist of yesterday, He, therefore, took it for granted that Mr. Dixon
was prepared to substantiate these charges or to confess that they were false.
16 is gaid that this Institution is immoral, that it is dirty, and that it isa
house of sin. He would like to hear these statements substantiated.
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Mr. Dixox.—1I stated at the commencement that all these charges did nob
eome from me. They came from different sources, and I do not doubt that
the persons who told me are prepared to substentiate them. I have already
said that what I meant by moral pollution was moral obliquity.

Dr. HarrowsLr.—The second letter talkes quite a different stand from the
first. It says— By the term ‘moral pollution,’ I mean no more than a ‘devia-
tion from a judicious and righteous course of government,” or in other words,
‘moral obliquity I make no immoral impeachment of its government.”

Dr. Ricuarpsox.—~That second letter does not cover one-tenth part of the
charges. This Hospital is declared to be & house of sin, a lousy hospital, and
a sink of corruption. How moral obliquity and a house of sin can be con-
nected he could not understand.

Mr. Drxox.~These charges do not all lie with me. I made them all public, -
but other parties told me of some of them.

Dr. RicEARDSON.—A person who makes such charges should he able to
substantiate them. -

Mr. Bowes.—I wish distinctly to know what opportunity you had of judg-
ing of the management of this Institution ?

Hr. Drxox.—1I have already told you that some of the charges I made from
my own ohservation, others from what friends have told me.

Mr. Bowss.—Then I trust that these parties will come boldly forward and
substantiate them.

Dr. ParLerick here came in, and said he was but a very sick man, and had
just risen from a very sick bed ; but he had one or two remarks to make, and
wished to knew what would be the fittest time for the trustees to hear his
statements. Tor the last three years he had been a visitor in this Hospital,
and he had a standing second to no man in his profession on this continent,
and therefore claimed for himself, the right to state his opinions in regard to
this Hospital.

As the Dr. was evidently much debilitated, and under great mental excite-
ment while making these remarks, he was interrupted by some of Lis friends
and requested to retire.

The CuarryaN said the gentleman was evidently very ill, and it were better
to appoint some time for him to give his evidence.

Dr. Pmiterick, however, retired shortly after, without making any further
statements at the time. :

Mr. Bowes.—There is a charge made against {he management of the Hospi-
tal, what do you say about that?

Mr. Drxoxj—I got my impression of the management of the Hospital from
what I saw myself, and wondered why it was these acts were tolerated.

Mr. Bow);s objected to any reference being made to any other parties unless
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the names of the parties who made these statements were given. They would
hold him to the letter.

Mr. DrxoN.—I presume the parties are prepared to substantiate what issaid
in that letter. I do not, however, wish to give their names, believing that
the parties themselves will come forward.

Dr. Ricuarpsox declared that the letter wag false and calumnious, and it
was 1o use for Mr. Dixon to try to get out of it in that way. When a person
made any staterent in the public prints, it is given there upon his own au-
thority, and not upon the authority of another.

Mr. BENTLEY considered it quite out of place for Dr. Richardson or any
other gentleman to express his opinion upon the question while it was under-
going investigation. Parties, in giving evidence of this kind, had a perfect
right to withhold the names of those from whom they received that informas
tion. There was also such a thing as common report, and statements were
frequently made upon that, without any one party being able distinctly to
say how that rumour originated.

Mr. Beaty differed entirely from the remarks of Mr. Bentley. The trustees
wanted facts. Mr. Dixon had told them what he saw. He says, he had seme
of the facts from others. Why not give the names of those parties? He
thought Mr. Dixon ought at once to tell who the parties were.

Mr. BENTLEY begged leave to differ with Mr. Beaty, and more especially as
Mr. Dixon had asserted that these parties were coming forward themselves
voluntarily to give evidence.

Mr. BeaTr still considered that Mr. Dixon should give the names of the
parties from whom he received his information,

Mr. Bowes.—On what grounds are you assured that the trustees were
aware that flagrant mismanagement existed in this institution ?

Mr. Drxoy.—I had my information from parties who had repeatedly pressed
it upon the attention of the trustees.

Mr. Bowes.—What we want is to get at the party who has misled you in
this matter.

Mr. Beaty expressed his desire that Mr. Dixon would now do justice to the
trustees. These charges were made and the party who had teld him said he
had pressed it upon the attention of the trustees frequently. Was it right
to his own character as a man, to let these charges go forward against the
trustees, and not tell them who it was that had pressed the matter upon them
frequently.

Mr. Sheriff Jarvis said he did not think the witness was fairly dealt with,
He had given informatiou of what he saw himself. He says—the rest of his
information he got from others. If the parties who told him of these fail so
€ome forward, then the charges will fall to the ground, and upon Mr. Dizoa
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will rest the odium of having failed to prove the charges he had made, and
the trustees and all the parties charged would be presentedjto the public as
having been unjustly accused.

Mr. DixoN—I1 expéct the parties are here who gave me the information,
and I bave no doubt they will come forward. 1did not report the ill treat~
ment of Burns to the medical officer, I did not report any of the other
cases, not being a regular student.

Mr, Bowes—There is a charge of immorality mentioned in the letter.

Mr, Dixon.—I did not mean by immorality what is generally considered
by immorality inthe gross sense.

Mr. Bowrs.—You have charged the trustees with knowing that the Hospi-
fal was a house of sin, and a sink of pollution, What are we to understand
you to mean by these terms,

Mr. Bexriry said, that might imply a deviation from a judicious and
righteous course. The object of this Institution is to relieve the dietress of the
sick and the unfortunate, but if they are treated insuch a way that their dis-
tress is not relieved but increased he wouldjconsider that a moral pervers
sion of the objects of the Institution,

Mr. Drxon said—I mean by moral pollution as applied to this Tnstitution
a perversion of the objects of the Institution, I have not taken out a ticket
this last session. T don’s therefore walk the hospital regularly, although I
have Deen occasionally. I have heard persons say they got lice upon them
by comirg into the hospital. I cavnot speak from personal knowledge. I
have heard students who are here to-day say that such is the fact. Mr. Bing=
ham has told me he got lice upon bis clothes. I have bhad conversations
with others who have visited other hospitals, and they say that this one was
invery bad order compared with them. I heard a medical man who attends here
now say, that this Institution would bear no comparison with any other hos-
pilal that he bad ever been in, either as regards management or cleanlinees,
I have heard them say that Montreal Hospital was well conducted, and  that
Boston Hospital was well condiicted Ihavenot myself had an opportunity
of judglog of its cleanliness as compared with other imstitutions. I have
heard the Hospital mentioned, frequently just to sneer at it.

Dr. Correr Do you think from your own observations that this Hospital
isa filthy Hospital.

Mr. Dixon.~—It is Do use putting such 2 question to me, because I have pot
had an opportunity of judging of its cleanliness, as compared with other
Instimtions of a similar kind. .

Mr, Bowrs.—You say the Hoai)ital is mentioned, merely to sneer at it,

Mr Dixon,~I have heard this repeatedly.

Mr. Bowzs,—You say m your letter—¢ I am in Ppossession of a great many
neidents to which I way draw the attention of the public sgain, if thees
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wrongs be not speedily redressed.”” Now have you given us all you know
personally about the institution 22

Mr. Dixox.—I presume that with regard to the other points, others that
are here will sustain them.

Mr. Beaty said, he did not doubt that such might be the case but he
would have been better pleased had Mr. Dixon himself given the names of
the parties.

John Lexnon—A student of medicine said, they need not press Mr. Dizon
80. They would get the whole of the evidence. He was prepared to come
forward and substantiate the charge against the trustees, They need not
therefore harrass Mr. Dixon any more.

Mr. Beary said, the immorality has been defined, and it consisted in
this, that patients coming to this Hospital, instead of getting proper treatment
got the opposite. Was that deficiency on the part of the medical staff, or upen
the governor of the Institution, or the servants. They wanted,as trustees, to
know if any one of those who had been appeinted to that Iustitution had not
done their duty.

Mr, BexTLEY begged to say that the Sheriff had already complained of
the way in which the witness had been treated, and he had good cause for
such a complaint. The position in which he was placed was nota fair one
as the trustees take the charges as applicable to themselves. Mr. Dixon had
already explained what he meant by his statements. If he fails to make
good his charges,the public would be able to judge for themselves. He
had stated thathe was unwilling to give the names of the parties who furnish-
ed the information, believing that these parties will come voluntarily forward
2nd substantiate their charges. 1f they do not, then the blame will fall upon
Mr. Dizon himself.

Here Dr. Widmer retired, and Mr. Beaty on taking the chair said, he
thought it uncourteous of any gentleman in the city of Toronio to ijne
terfere with the trustees . tbe r endeavour to get all the information
they possibly could, If a gentleman who had charged them in the public
prints comes here voluntarily and says that he is wnwilling to give the
names of the parties from whom he got his information, he was ftreatiog the
{rustees unhandsomely,

Mr. Bowss said they would bave every gentleman conwected with the
Hospital brought fcrward, and would continue the investigation for a week
or a month rather than not bave the evidence complete.

Dr. BarLowsLL wished to call upon the learned gentleman, (Mr, Bealley)
who teemwed so able an advocate—he did not understand why he should be
80, perhaps there were stroug reasons for it—bub he would simply ask (hat
gentleman what those aspersions were that were cest upon the gentleman whe
had ccme forwars to pive information,

Mr. BexrLEY made no reply,
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T'he Omatnumay asked if thero was any other person prepared to giveevidence,
When—

Jomn LEvNox came forward and said, I am a senfor student, and have at
tended the Hospital about as regularly as any of the students who have af-
tended the Hospital during the last six months. Xwish to say that1 cone
here voluatarily to make a statement of facts in connection with this affair.
I knew nothing about the letter signed “A Medical Student” until it was ins
the hands of the publisher. I stated, when I saw it that I could not, subscribe
to the Iatter part of it, that the expressions were not the best adapted to carry
out the meaning the writer had in view, as they were liable to Dbe misunder-
stood. Inregard to the first part of it—that relating to the coloured man
—I may say that I was summoned before the Magistrate, and gave evidence
inregard to the coloured man. I stated thatin coming ont of the surgery
in the Hospital, I met a coloured man, who asked it hs could get his tooth
drawn, Dr. Clarke gave me the instruments, and I drew the tooth. Just when
I had done so, Burns came in, and took the coloured man by the shoulders
and pushed him oub of the door. Afterthe evidence had all been given the
Magistrate said that Burns’s conduct was most unjustifiahle—that it was ex-
tremely cruel—and that he was entirely unfitted for hissituation, and should
be dismissed from the hospital. Burns may be a good servant,and very ca-
pable of discharging his duty; but his conduct upon several occasions in
this Hospital, has not been wbat an official in this Institution ought to be.
In regard to another point in that letter, Iam the person who bled the pa-
tient in the corridor. I came here to hear the examination of Mr. Paget, and
some one came in and said there was a patient that needed tobe bled. With
all respect to Dr. Cotter and his large practice in this city, I must say that
the water was not thrown upon the man in a Cbristian Spirit. He dashed
the water into his face, in the middle of winter too, I did not take more than
ten ounces of blood from him, anddon’t think he was bled to sincope. I did
not see the man ejected from the Hospital. I say it wasright to throw water
upon the man’s face. I would have done so myself; but I don’t think it was
right to throw it upon him as it was done. Itis customary to throw water
upon a patient after bleeding.

(Here the witness stated that he objected to any question being put to him
by any person except the Chairman, Hehad come voluntarily forward to
state all he knew abont the affair, and if the Trustees were notcapable of dis-
charging their daty, he would cheerfully appear before any commission that
might be appointed.)

Witness resumed—The next case in connexion with Burns that came under
my observation was, oneday when Dr. Bovell was prescribing for  patient in
the room over thesurgery, in the northeast corner. It was either Dr. Bovell’a
week aa visiting physician, or he was discharging the duty of another medical
officer, whom I have not seen there since I came, A POOr woman came ins
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gide the room door, as if she, was going to ask something, when Burns
thrust her out immediately in a very rude manner. Dr. Clarke was present,
and must have seen the cireumstance.

Dr. CrARkE here stated that he did not see it done.

WirnEss.—If you did not see it you must have been wilfully blind, for I
do pot think you could help seeing it. 1 have no charge against you how-
ever, Dr. Clarke, because you have always treated me very kindly since I
came to the Hospital. We come now to the case of the medical students
from Victoria College. The students, I don’t know the exact number, were
all upstairs with Dr. Wright, who was the Medical gentleman for that week,
when 2 nurse came and opened the door, and said here are the Medical stu-
dents from Victoria College, and she then went on with a regular tirade thab
no person unless in liquor wonld have done. 1t appeared to me from her con-
duct that she was in liqunor. She said to the young man that she would brick-
bat his mouth so that she would know him again. Dr. Wright said to her
that there was no use in her going cn in that way. The young lad would not
trouble her again as he would find his way next time without her assistance.
Tbe name of the nurse I helieve was Mrs. Donelly. The next case we come to
is that of the coloured man, Jackson. Mrs. Donelly said to the medical officer
(Dr. Wright) that if he took in that coloured man as a patient she would be
the death of him. Upon another occasion theve was some talk about this
coloured man, when one of the patieuts came forward, and said that it wasa
shame, the manner in which this coloured man was treated, for he wag as
good & patient as was in the hospital. I heard that Dr. Clarke had refused to
allow teeth to be drawnin the hospital, and said that they might go to the
dentists, Iimmediately said to some of the students that they should write
to some newspaper Kditor on the subject, for I was under the impression thai
this had arisen through spitc. Shortly after that, another patient came to get
& tooth drawn while Dr. Aikins was adimtting patients, and Dr. Clarke made
the same remark to him that there were 1o more teeth to be drawn in the Hos-
pital. Dr. Aikins said he would draw the tooth himsell and -nob trouble any
one. He then went in and got the instruments; but he found that it was only
an abscess in the gum, and having opened it he told the man that that would
give him relief. The last occasion on which I saw Burns munifest his cruelty
wag in the case of a poor man, called, “the doctor.”” The poor maa came here
with a fractured leg, and he jerked that man aboutin such a wey as to be a
disgrace to the lnstitution that such an officer should he about it. His con-
duct was such that the medical officer had to interfere. Iwish to state that
Dr. Clarke had refused the instruments to two students—Mr. Campbell and
Mr. Carswell—before he refuzed them to Dr.Atkins. In regard to the bleeding
of the patient I would state that Burns came forward a second time with the
water to throw it, and was prevented doing so by a nurse, named Hsther
There are certain charges that I am willing to give evidence upon, but I
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think § would rather reserve to myself any fufther remarks at present as I
do expect that there will be a commission from Government to investigate
those charges.

The Cusrraax.—I think it is not likely. Weare here to make an investiga-
tion. It is an onerous duty but we are prepared to discharge it. If youlknow
anything of the wrong working of this Institution we will be happy to hear it.

Mr, Lenvon—My reason for saying so is, from the fact that the Trustees
have already prejudged the case in the letter which they published in the
Colonist of the 28th.

Here follows the letter to which witness referred and part of which he read.

(o the Editor of the Daily Colonist.) -

«Srr—The Trustees of the Toronto General Hospital havejread with great in-
dignation, a false and culumnious statement of the management of that institu-
tion, over the signature of * A Medical Siudent.”” Such a statement, if even
remotely connected with truth, would cover with disgrace the character of five
of your townsmen, in whom is vested the superintendence and direction of all.
matters conneeted with the internal economy of this public charity. The Trus-
tees, a5 a public body, assert their claim upon the press for the exercise of a dis~
crimineting protection from the hasty publication of such atrocions libels ag that
ofthe * Medicel Student,” the publication of which appears to have been as read-
ily effected as if it contained merely a discussion of some trifling points of dis-
cipline falling within the circle of a legitimate eriticism, If the power of the
Press, is thus extended on all occasionswithout due examination and investigation
of the probability of truthinthe charges, what public or private institutions may
not be assailed with impunity by such unserupulous scribblers? And although
a subsequent enquiry may prove the falsehood of the attack, yet it may come
too late, the poison has circulated throughout the country, and many will con-
(inue to believe in the truth of the statement. It is apparent, however to the
Trustees, that this communication did not originate solely in the brain of a
¢ Yedical Student, its source is derived from parties who dare not come for-
ward in their true position to substantiate their accusations ; it is not the first of
this description of slander that has emanated from the same source.

To bestow the necessary attention for refuting this tirade of falsehood, would
be a waste of time. The Trustees believe that by inviting the intelligent and
respectable inhabitants of the city, together with all the members of the profes-
sion therein, to visit the Hospial at all hours of the day, and to make enquiries
of the patients and servants as to the treatment they receive from the resident

medical officer, as well as from the whole medical staff of the institution ; and
to observe the degree of neatness, cleanliness, and regularity to be found, will
be the surest made of confounding the writer under the name of “ A Medical
Student,”” and afford sufficient proof of the disregard he has evinced, by his pub-
lication, of common honesty and veracity,
- J. W. BRENT,

Toronto General Hospital Office, March 27, 1855,” Secretary,
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«It was resolved at a meeting of the Trustees, held this day, that in order to
give to the party assailing the management of the Hospilal, an opportunity of
establishing his allegations, the Trustees will hold a meeting at the Hospital
at 12 o’clock, noon, on Thursday next, the 29th instant.

The attending physicians of the Institution, as well as the members of the
profession thoughout the city, are hereby invited to attend.

J. W. BRENT,

Toronto General Hospital Office, March 27, 1855,” Secrelary.

Mr. LeExyoN.—I can state as to the meddling interference with the patients.

Mr. BEary.—If anything of that kind has come under your own observa-
tion, then it is your duty to make it knowwu.

Mr. Lewxox here related the case of & young lad, troubled with fistula, who
was under Dr. Aikin’s care and who had heen advised by Mrs. Donelly to get
Dr. Hodder or Dr. Beaumont to operate upon him, and she bad advised the
parents of the lad to take him away or he would die in the Hospital if left
under Dr Aikin’s care. Dr. Aiking had, however, succeeded in effecting a
care.

Mr. Lex~ox then said, as regards the charges against the Trustees, I have
attended here regularly for the purpose of benefitting myself by secing the
practice of the able gentlemen who attend this Hospital. I am always happy
to have the privilege of walking the Hospital with Dr. Hodder or with Dr.
Bovell, But with regard to Dr. Telfer and Dr. Beaumont and Dr. Herrick, I
have not had the privilege of walking the wards with them. I have paid
for my ticket, and'I expected to have the benefit of it. Dr. Telfer will come up
at 11 o’clock and get through with his patients before the hour fixed for the
students, and Dr. Beaumont will not come sometimes till three o’clock. b is
not once in six weeks that I meet with them, and yet I must come up here
and wait my hour from 12 to 1 o’clock, in, order to get my ticket certified,
or if I don’t, I cannot graduate at College. I don’t know why Dr. Herrick or
Dr. Beaumont don’t attend, I am under the impression and have always felt
that as a student in the Toronto Institution, I was degraded, that there was
some sort of stigma intended to, be cast upon us, and upon all belonging to
that college. If their objectis to prevent ns ag much as possible sceing Hos-
pital practice, they have accomplished their object pretty well. The students
had attended regularly to receive their instruction, and I challenge any
medical gentleman who comes to this Institution to name 2 student that hag
violated any of itsrules. [Witness here referred to the following letter pub-
lished in the Colonist of the 28th, with the names of the students of the Trin.
ity College attached, and stated that one of these shudents told him that he
never knew what was in that letter until it appeared in the newspaper with
" his name attached. He told him also that two of the students whose names
were appended to it were out of town, and consequently had not seen the docu
ment at all.]
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( To the Editor of the Colonist.)

“8tr,—In your issue of the 24th, there appeared a communication over the
signature of A Medical Student,” couched in such language, and composed
of such a tissue of untruths, as to demand an immediate answer, to counteract
the impression which it would doubtless make upon the public mind, In an-
swering this pseudo-philanthropist, T shall not stoop to use such language as-
characterized his production, which appears, like the spider’s web, to have been
spun from the venom of a brain, provided by nature for a higher and nobler pur-
pose ; bat, alas! it proved degraded and debased. The animadversions of the
writer are cornposed soley of strong assertions, without proof, declamation with-
out argument, and violent censure, without truth or moderation, which in fact
would not reach the standard of dignified contempt, were itnot known that the
“Student” known to you as the author of the letter in question, is but the
mouthpiece and tool of desi gning men, who teo cowerdly to speak themselves, thus

endeavour to find shelter.

Your correspondent first makes an attack upon Mr. Burns who, he says,was
fined some time since by the Police Magistrate, “for brutally using a coloured
man,” and continues that it was shown by Mr.jLennon (a medical student)
that this Burns had without any provocation grossly and wantonly maltreated
the poor feliow,and that in the act he could be prompted by no motive, but the
eruelty and relentless heartlessness, which he saw him so frequently manifest
towards the suffering and afflicted upon many other occasions.”

Now, 8ir, without reflectivg in the least upon the deeision of the magistrate in
that case, I fearlessly assert that a thorough exarnination inte Burns’s conduct,
not only upon that occasion, but upon every other, would be productive of a
result highly flattering to that official,and clearly prove that his great sin has
been, that while in the performance of his duty, he has been forced to check the
imeddling presumption of some two or three notoriously impertinent students,
and that instead of his cruelty and ruthlessness being proverbjal among the stu-
dents, the contrary is the truth. Next, the scribbler, with impertinence so
truly characteristic, vents his spleen upon Dr. Clarke, the House Surgeon, by
acensing him of encouraging and maintaining Burns in such disgracefol conduct,
and not permitting the poor to kave their teeth extracted. The only answer to
these accusations is, that they are wholly and utterly false. Dr, Clarke,as a
gentleman and an able Surgeon, stands deservedly high in the estimation of the
great majority of the Students attending the Toronto hospital, and the best evi-
dence of this may be found in the fact, that he has demanded an immediate
and strict enquiry into this whole matter, which enquiry will commence to-
morrow, and will, without doubt, result in teaching “*a Medical Student’” and
his prompters, that truth is the best policy, and probably lead the public to as-
sociate ¢ moral pollution” with his name, giving the term a far different mean-
ing’frora that given by him, in his attempted retraction, in your issue of this
morning. Theaccusation againstone of the nurses, while equally false, is truly
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the most disgusting part of his production, and is completely unworthy of a
reply. Asto his appellation of L—y Hospital it is an invention of his own.

In conclusion, I feel confident that the larze majority of the students attend-
ing the TorontojHospital will readily testify to the niter falseness of his accusa-
tions, and leaving him to enjoy the unenviable notoriety he has gained,

I am yours,
VERITAS.

P. 8. The iavestigation spoken of above, will be open to the public, and will
commence at 12 ’¢lock, as Dr. Clarke is particularly anxious for the public to
be present.

ToronTo, March 26th, 1855.

We, the undersigned Medical Students, attending the Toronio General Hospi-
tal, having read the letter signed “Veritas,’” heartily concar in the sentiments
it enunciates, and feel convincedthat the accusations brought against :that in=
stitution and its officers, by the person signing himsel{ “A  Medical Student,”
are utterly devoid of truth, and entirely unworthy the confidence of the public.

(Signed,)
Edwin Goodman, Win.”Chase, Isaac Ryall,
Henry. Hall, D.E. Burdett, Arthur H.Paget,
John F.McKenric, Martin Morrison Richard P. Lawiz,
Wmn. 8. Hewat, Robert Johnson, Thos. J. Philips,
Gordon 1. Emery, A. T. Augusta, Michael Lowlor,
H. M. Wrong, R. L.Ball, N. O, Walker.

‘Wm. Donnelly.

Mr. Lennon resumed —~With regard to the treatment which the patients re«
ceive from the medical gentlemen, it is most humane. Tt is most kind. Lasi
Saturday I attended here with Dr, Aikins, when Dr. Clarke hrought under Dr.
Aiking’ notice the letter that had appeared in that morning’s Colonist, and
asked him if he had seen it; and he commented upon it in terms which I thought
unjust. Dr. Clarke said, however as to the charges— with regard to lice
being in the Hospital, he did all he could to keep the place clean. He stated
that the trustees would not do their duty. There wasnot a single bath in
the Institution, If a medical man orders a bath fora patient, he cannot get
it. They canuot get a bath unless they are moved down to the cellar, and
there turn out the washerwomen, and take one of their tubs. These state-
ments, in regard to Burns’s treatment, and what I bave here stated, Iam
willing to take my oath on in a Court of Justice. Idon’t think the term mor-
al pollution in the letter is applicable. I think the other statements in the
letter are true. Inregard tothe medical gentlemen in this Institution, some
of them come at 11 o’clock, and get throngh before we come here, because our
hour is12 o’clock. Dr. Clarke hastold the students attending this Hospital that
they should go to the trustees and demand their fee to be returned, for they
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had no right to it when the medical gentlemen did not come te give them in-
struction. I understand that this subject was brought under Dr. Widmer’s no-
tice, and that Dr. Beaumont said he would attend when heliked. There are sev-
eral students who conld corroborate what I have stated, but they havenot the
courage to do so, because they must appear before the Board for examination
in another week. With regard to the cleanliness of the Hospital, it is perhaps
ag clean as it can be kept with the means placed at the disposal of the medi-
cal officer by the trustces. But at the same time Ihave seen vermin crawling
upon the patients.

Mr. Bowes here put several questions from the letter, which were briefly
anwered.

Mr. Lexxox.—With regard to Dr. Clarke, I can only say that his treatment
of me hag been that of a gentleman, and he has always expressed his desire
fo do any thing in his power to advance my knowledge. Withregard to
the officers of the Institution, I never heard the matron’s name till to-day.
With regard to female nurses, I think better nurses could not be obtained.
I'have not heard any one spoken of except Buras and Mrs. Donelly. Idon’t
think the man is incapable of discharging his duty; I think he could de
it first rate if he was kept in subjection.

Dr. HoppeR here said that he wished to make a remark or two. The young
man had stated that he (Dr. Hodder) was present at the operation for fistula
by Dr. Aikins. Part of that was true. It was true he merely recommended
Dr. Aikins to cut a little deeper down and in all probability he would find the
urethra. It was true that he took the probe in his left hand and tried to fisd
out the passage, but Dr. Aiking did not feel as if inclined to cut deeper, and
he (Dr. Hodder) tock up bis hat and walked offt. He did not see the com-
meuncement of the operation. e only saw a small portion of it, and went
off when he saw Dr. Alkins unwilling to take any advice from him. With res-
pect toregularity of attendance, he believed he could boast of having attend-
ed the Hospital more regularly than any other medical gentleman. This
winter, however, he had had an attack of sciatica of a very acute kind, and
had been an invalid. Bui when he found that he was unable to attend the
Hospital, being often unable to rise from the sofa, he had got Dr. Beaumont
or Dr. Bovell to see bis patients for him, and he was not aware that one single
patient committed to his care had failed to get all the adventages which the
Hospital affords. ITe wished the students to understand, however, that he
was notbere as a clinical instructor. e came here simply to attend to sick
patients who were placed under his care, and did not come to give clinical
instruction at all. He did so for the first year voluntarily, and he made no
distinction between the students of one school and another. e told the
students if they wished his instructions he would be happy to give them, but
unfortunately a member of the medical profession then in Toronto, who was
an editor of & journal, made some charges against the Hospital, and he [Dr.
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Hodder] said if every little lapse wasthus to be criticised, he, for one, would
give no further clinical instructions, he was not appointed for that purpose
by the trustees, aud he did not intend to doso. Ile merely menfioned these
things to prevent any further allusion to that part of the duty.

Dr. Arxivs wished to correct Dr. Hodder upon one point. Having made
some remarks in regard to the case of fistula in perineo, he stated that the
young lad was sent in from Lloydtown, by Dr. Bull, and that he (Dr. Aiking,)
directed Dr. Clarke to call & consultation upon the case. At that consul-
tation, Dr. Hodder, Dr. Bovell, and Dr. Telfer were present.‘ Dr. Hodder
did come;in subsequently, when he was operating, and at Dr. Hodder’s ad-
vice, he [Dr. Aikins] cut a little deeper than he intended. He denied the
statement, thatany want of respect was shown to Dr. Hodder, the reverse
was the case. After considerable perseverance, he [Dr. Aikins] succeeded
in the cure, and he was told by Dr. Clarke, that he was the first who had
succeeded in curing that disease in the Hospital. [All thi~ was a sort of in-
terlude, while Mr. Lennon was still standing.}

Mr. Bowes.—Then your charge against the trustees is, first, that the medi-
cal officers appointed by them to attend to the Hospital, have not attenderd
regularly.

Mr. Lexyoy—Yes—and furthermore that the patients are not, by any
means, so clean as they might be, if proper means were used.

Dr. Crarke.—THave you ever knowa me, or do you think I would allow
any person in a situation uwnder me, commit a single act of cruelty to the
poorest personin the Hospital, who had come in under my charge?

Mr. LusyoN.—You have always acted as a gentleman towards me, and youn
have done the same to the other students. The case of tooth-drawing how-
ever, came uuder your notice, and the other case of harsh treatment by
Burns, if you did not see it, it is strange to me.

Dr. CLArEE.—Did any person ever say they knew me to commit an act of
cruelty to any patient in the Hospital ? '

Mr, LExvox.—I am satisfied you are incapable of committing aunact of
cruelty yourself.

Dr Orarke.—IHad the thing been reported to me at the time, I immediately
would have dismissed him. Asregards the woman up stairs, I would only
say, we are allliable to commit fanlts,

Mr. Lexyoy.—That man, Burns, when he knew that I was to give evidence
against him, set himself up before me, and with a most confemptible leer
looked me right in the face, and tried to get some of the other studewnts to
raise a laugh against me.

SamueL H. Jacrsox, a coloured man.—I was a patient in the hospital. I
was in three or four days without getting anything to eat. On the fourlh
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day after T wastaken in, T asked Dr. Clarke the privilege of going out. I
went out and got a loaf of bread. When T was returning, Dr. Aikins overtook
me and asked me why I was out. I told him that I was starving and bad
gone out to look for something to eat. Dr Aikinssaid it was very great care-
lessness on the part of the nurse. With that Mr. Buras and Mrs, Donrelly,
the doctor’s leader, went and told him [Dr Clarke] thatT was going to break
their heads. The doctor comes up and says : you are very rude, and make
a good dealof disturbance ; you cannot stop here ; you have disobeyed the
orders of the hospital. I told him that I was so hungry Icould stop no lon-
ger without something to eat. So I was turned out. I did not think itright,
but Mrs. Donnelly, the doctor’s leader, stood there and prompted him. - T
went back sgain in about five weeks after, but the doctor was unwilling to
let mein. T told him I was accused wrongly before, and by the persuasion
of some of the doctors he allowed me to come in. While there the building
got on fire because somebody had shut the stove damper and opened the door
while the stove wasfull of wood. The nurse jumped on me and said this
d——— nigger ought to have hishead cut off. T had nothing to do with
the fire, but they said this to raise the doctor against me. When I saw this
I went np stairs, because Isaw the doctor and Mrs. Donnelly were all one.

Mr. Bowrs—Did you ever see Mrs. Donnelly drunk ?

Jackson—I have seen ber in such a state that I thought she was drunk.
I saw Mrs. Donnelly one day when three or four people came in and brought
in a flask with thewm, and they sat down and divided the stuff that was in it
among them. T did not tell Dr. Clarke, because T considered Dr. Clarke and
Mrs. Donnelly were both my enemies.

SmrE PAEILLIPS, 2 coloured man.—1 have beenin the hospital for four or
five months. I was under Mrs. Donnelly. I have nothing more to say than
that I was never better treated than by Dr. Olarke. T was under Dr. Hodders
I know that Dr. Hodder did not neglect me.

[Phillips here related some transactions that had taken place between Jack-
eont and himself, to shew that the evidence of Jackson was not to be credited.
He then stated that he had never seen Mrs. Donnelly take a drop of liquor
in his life, andhe was at least three months under Mrs. Donnelly’s care.]

The CHAIRMAN.—If there is any other person present who can give us any
information in this matter, let him cowe Forward,

RoBErT CaMPEELL—I am a senior student of Medicine T have not taken
out a ticket for the hospital for this year. I come here, however, occasion-
ally. Tonly come forward ab this time, voluntarily of conrse, to say that I
have seen the transactions which Mr. Dixon has stated in the letter. In re-
gard to the man that was bled, I sas Burps take the water and dash it upon
him. He thea took him forcibly by the shoulders and dragged him out of
the door and laid him upon the verandah. The water was in such s large
quantity that it deluged the man all over.
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In reply to Dr. Cotter, who gave a practicel illustration of how he would
treat such a patient. Mr. Campbell said, that may be Dr. Cotter’s system,
but I wish to state that the man was handled very roughly, and the manner of
liffing him was very harsh. I wag present at the time when the stu-
dents went into the room, whea Mrs. Donnelly cams up and talked to the
‘young student. I think her conduct to that young man was rather rough and
abusive. I would not have put up withit. I cannot substantiate the charges
of moral pollution contained in Mr. Dixon’s letter. I have seen nothing that
I disapproved of unless these two incidents which I have mentioned.

G. W.BiNneHaM—T am a senior student. I had a ticket out for the Hospital
last winter, and I came into town in the fall with the intention of taking out
g, ticket for this winter. But when I went home after having walked through
some of the wards I found lice upon my clothes. Iwas very much disap-
pointed at this, but rather than subject myself to that annoyance, I deprived
myself of the pleasure and the advantage of attending the Hospital, so I have
not dome so this winter. While T did attend the Hospital, I received the im-
pression that the students of the Toronte School of Medicine were unjustly
treated. T formed this impression from the general bearing of the profes-
sors. Others of the students have stated the same thing. I think there is
great partiality shown both by the officers of the Institution snd by the pro-
fessors to the other students. I do not know that I could name any one stu-
dent who told me of this. It seemed the general impression that there was greal
partiality shown to the students of Trinity College. I never saw anything
objectionable in regard to Dr. Clarke. I never saw any thing immoral in re-
gard to the Institution. I can, however, endorse the statement in regard to
vermin. I think the way in which Mr. Dixon has written, is comparatively,
but I cannot say what the general appearance of other Hospitals is, compared
with this one. I have not attended the Hospital this winter, I have never
heard complaints from patients themselves, but I have heard thew from those
stodents who visited the Hoaspital.

Dr. CLaRRE here held up a ticket which had been wade out at Mr, Bing-
ham’s request, but he had not called for it.

Mr. BiveaaxM said, the Trustees would see his reason for taking out the
ticket was, that he required a year’s Hospital ticket at the school. He had
not attended regularly and for the reasons he had stated.

Joax G. Gray.—I am a senioc student. It has been frequently stated to me
by the students that they consider the Hospital very dirfy. This was my con-
viction, from the first day I entered it. For the first two months, I altended
regularly ; that Dr. Clarke knows well, But I stated to him that it was not
worth my while attending this Hospital, because it was only wasting my
time. A friend of mine came to town, and he thought of stopping here ; but
1 advised him to go on to Montreal, as I thought the facilities for studer!s
were much better there than in this institntion. 1 wag, for seven month uf-
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tending Montreal Hospital, and I would certainly say that this Hospital, in
comparison with the Montreal Hospital, is very dirty. I did not think it my duty
to call Dr. Clarke’s attention to the filthy state of the institution. I stated to
Dr. Clarke that I did not think it was my duty to attend the Hospital at all,
because the medical officers did not come here at the regular hour. I have
come here at the regular hour every day for a week, and have not found
any of the medical attendants present ; and, therefore, I was deprived of the
advantages of medical practice. [ don’t know how many physicians there
are in this Hospital. Dr. Wright may be receiving pbysician for one week,
and in that time he may receive a number of patients; but before hiz time
of receiving comes round again, a great many may be admitted by the other
medical gentlemen, and consequently we never see those patients at all when
the physician under whose care they are placed is not present. My objection
on this head, then, is—that the medical attendants do not come -at a proper
time, to meet the convenience of the students. In regard to the management
of the hospital, I may state that, one week, when Dr. Wright was receiving-
physician, a young woman came from QOakville, labouring under some syphil-
litic disease, as I thought. She asked for Dr. Aikins. I said that it was Dr.
Wright’s week fo receive patients. T did not think it was any harm $o speak
to her, and I questioned her until I found out that I was correct in the opinion
1 had formed. While speaking to her, Dr. Clarke came up, and said, *“ Come
here, you,” pointing to the young woman. He broughi her intc this room,
and locked the door—for what purpose I don’t know. I had told her by this
time that Dr. Wright was the receiving physician for that week, and that she
would be put under his care, I did think at the time, that Dr. Clarke was
rather out of place in the way he treated me. I found out after that the pa-
tient was put under Dr. Bovell.

Dr. CLARKE here stated that he remembered the case well, and that it was
Dr. Bovell’s week as receiving physician.

Witness—1I declare that Dr. Wright was the admitting physician for the
week, and that Dr. Clarke had no right to put that patient under Dr. Bovell’s
charge, or that of any other but Dr. Wright.

Dr. CLazgr said if he got 2 note from any person to put a patient under
the care of such and such & one he generally did so, and it was possible that
this patient had a line. -

Witness.—I consider that the patient conld know nothingat all about Dr.
Bovell, and could not have a line to him because she asked for Dr. Aikins.
To show that Dr. Clarke did not think the Hospital worth attendance, he has
frequently given the students a certified ticket for a year’s attendance when
they had not attended six months.

Dr. Crirke.—T have already certified to students for_this winter before the
1st of April, becanse 1 consider that five monthe’ attendance out of six is good
attendance,
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"~ Mr. Bowes. What have you tosay about the immorality practised in the
Ingstitution.

Witness. If itis proved that the nurse was in the habit of cursing and
swearing at patients, I think that isufficient proof of immorality. I saw Burns
one day give a patient a slap on the side of the head. I never saw any of
them drunk. I have seen the clothes of the bed very dirty sometimes.

Mr, Bowes.—Was it uncleannessin the sheets, or general uncleanness.”

Witness.—It arose from general uncleanness.

Dr. HatroweLr begged leave, before they proceeded further, to call the
attention of the trustees to one particular feature that had characterized the
whole of the proceedings of the day. He would premise that he did not be-
long to the Hospital, and had no interest in it, either directly or indirectly
except being connected with Trinity College, and having his colleagues ex
officio conuvected with the Hospital, and therefore the remarks he was going
to make might have perhaps some slight degree of weight. He would say
that the first attack made upon the Hospital—whether borne out by facts or
not, the evidence will eventually show—had been commenced at the in-
stance of, and by one of the students of a certain school of medicine in this
¢city. It appeared tohim, and he had paid the greatest attention to the pro-
ceedings, that the whole of the evidence had been one sided. The  accusa-
tions had come from a student of this school of medicine, and all the witnesses
that had been brought forward to attempt "to sustain these charges were
from the same school. He did not stand there to impugn the testimony of
any of these students. He was willing to allow that testimony its due weight.
That given by Mr. Lennon. especially, had been that of a straight forward
Englishman. [A Student,—Mr. Lennon i3 an Irishman.] What he wished to
convey wag that the evidence bhad been given in a regular Jobn Bull style,
and he believed that the Irishman was quite as straight forward. But it was
a remarkable feature in the proceedings that not a single particle of testimo-
ny had been addaced by any single witness from any other school. Why wes
this? It appeared to him that there was a degree of jealousy at the bottom
of itall. He would do the gentleman, (Ir. Dixon,) the justice to say, thathis
statements were equally straigiforward with those of Mr. Lennon, but he be-
leved that Mr. Dixon, had he been left {o his own judgment would never have
penned theletter which appeared in the public prints. (Cheers and hisses.) It
wag hig firm conviction that Mr. Dizon, now regretted the false position in
which he had placed himself, and that if he spoke the truth he would say that
he had been brought forward by other people to make these charges. [Hisses
and cheers.] There was an influence of that kind brought io bear upon him
That was his own opinion, and he helieved it was shared by several gentle.
men of the same profession present. [Hisses and cheers.]

Mr. Gray.—Dr. Hallowell, from what he has said, would lcave the andience
to infer that all those who had spoken here to-day—ezcept;Mr. Lennon and
Mr. Dixon—have not spoken the truth,



28

Dr. HarroweLL rose to explain—when—

Mr. Bowes expressed his regret that Dr. Hallowell had made the remarks
which had fallen from him. He regretted that any rivalry should exist be-
iween the different schools of medicine ; but he believed that Mr. Dixon re-
gretted he had put forward so strong language when he hag not heen able to
substantiate it by evidence. There wag not s tittle of evidence toshow that
the Toronto Hospital is a “house of sin,”” or that the servants, or the matron
are unworthy of being classed with honest women. The cherges of delin-
quency are very sweeping and if not substantiated by evidence, Mr. Dixon
will of conrse be bound to answerfor them.

Dr. HarlowprL said in his remarks he had alluded to the letter that ap-
peared in the Colonist, signed a “Medical Student.” e had said that Mr. Dix-
on regretted that that letter wag written ; and he (Dr. Hallowell) believed
firmly, and it was the belief of nine-tenths of the commmnnity, that Mr. Dixon
was krought forward by others to make these charges.

Mr. BENTLEY.—Dr. Hallowell has here stated that Mr. Dixon was urged
by either parties to write that letter, and he (Dr. Hallowell) lays the blame
npon those connected with the Toronto school of Medicine.

Dr. Hatrowrlrn.—I havelaid no blame, I have made no accusation ; but T
have heard ray colleagues spoken of in a very disparaging way and I have a
right to stand up in their behalf.

Mr. BeNTLEY.—It was necessary %o suppose that so far as the witnesses
could be brought forward, they must be from amongst the medical students ;
and they could not expect them from the students of Trinity.College.

Dr. HALLOWELL .~ Why not?

Mr. Bexriay.—Simply because of that letter in ibe Colonist a day or
two ago, which is endorsed by a numher of the students of Trinity College,
It has been sald by Mr. Lennon that five, at least, of these names were
put there without the consent of the students.

Dr. HatrowrLL.—That does not affect thequestion at all.

Mr. BextLEY.~—~Does it not, when the names of the Students of a certain
college are brought forward totake acertain side, without their consent or
concurrence. If any individual from that college was willing to come forward
to substantiate the trath of the charges made by Mr. Dixon, it is very easy to
see that he could not come, for the influence of that school would be exert-
ed to preventhim coming forward. He wished to say that he had, much
against his wishes and contrary to his intentions, occupied some of the time
of the meeting, but he wasnot aware that such statements were to be made.

The Cuairyay here stated that the trustees had nothing whatever to do
with the jealousies that existed between the schools. He regretted that it
should exist, but at the same time, the trustees were not to be blamed for
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that. He was convinced that it would be borne out by the evidence that the
trustees had no*partiality in the matter there were three colleges he believed
in the city;and they had sclected two medical gentlemen from each of the
schools asthe way which seemed best fitted to give impartiality to all.

Mr. BENTLEY considered it of the utmostimportance that the head of this
ingtitution should have the same spirit of impartiality. He had heard that
Dr. Clarke had shown great partiality to the students of Trinity College
and wished to ask Mr. Lennon this one question.—Have you ever heard Dr.
Clarke declare that he used his influence in favour of any particular medical

chool.

Mr. LnNon—A eircumstance occurred to me while speaking, but Idid not,
then mentionit. But the impression upon my mind i3 that Dr, Clarke was
overhauling Mr. Bovell about his non-attendance at Trinity College, and he
said to Dr. Bovell, thathe (Dr. Clarke) was doing all he could for Trinity
College--that he had sent up students often to Trinity College, but that they
never could see him (Dr. Bovell.) He would, however, continue todo all
he could for Trinity College.

Dr. Crarxe.—I always will support Trinity College, because it was my
albma mater in the old country, and more than that, it is a college founded on
the religion I profess—the Established Church of England, and I am not
ashamed to confessmy partiality for that church.

Mr. Bowes.— 1 don’t think that bLecanse Trinity College is founded apon
the religion you profess, that therefore you should.show any partiality in this
Institution.

Dr. CLARKB, (warmly).—There is another thing Sir. | consider the Medical
Staff of Trinity College the most cfficient in Upper Canada. I consider it the,
most perfect staff in Upper Canada for this reason, every chair is filled by a
professor who is admitted by the students of all the schools o be an able mao,

Mr. BenTLEY.—That may be all very true, but I still hope that the Medical
Superintendent of an lustitution like this should be as free from bias as pos-
gible, and if' he has any bias he should endeavour to keep it to himself.

The CualrMaN-—The thigg is, has Dr. Clarke not done his duty, and have
the sevants of this Institution not done their duty ?

Dr, HarrLoweLL-—Before any further evidence is taken, he begged leave
to ask one question, Mr. Gray had cither stated broadly or insinuated what-
ever interpretation may be put upon it, that Dr. Clarke brought a patient into
this room for purposes of which he was not cognizant but he was convinced
that it was for the purpuse of influencing thab patient to pub herself under
the care of Dr. Bovell or D, Hodder, instead of under {he professors of the
Toronto School of Medicine. He begged to ask Mr. Gray if he (Dr. Hallg-
well) was correct in the impression he had formed.

Mr. Gray.—You are perfectly correct I helieve he did.}
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Dr. Harrowern.—Then, Mr. Chairman, I beg to call apon Dr. Clarke,
through you, to answer interested, as we all are in the welfare of this Institu-
tion, first, did Dr. Clarke thus influence this patient alluded to, and, second,
if he ever influenced other patieuts to apply to other medical men than the
legitimate admitting physician for the week ? If he did so, then with all due
deference to Dr. Clarke, unless he can give this meeting satisfactory reasons
for recommending a patient or patients to go to one professional gentleman
in preference to another he is not fitted for the situation he holds. He would
therefore put these two questions to Dr. Clarke.

Dr. Cranke said he could solemnly say that he had never influenced a
patient admitted into this hospical, but had always left them to the medical
officer for the week to do as they thought proper. If, however, a patient
brought a note from any medical officer to be put under his charge, he did
50, and patients had beer sent in that way frequently.

Mr. Gray.—Dr. Olarke hag said he never influenced any patient. How did
it happen that this patient to whom he had before alluded was not put under
Dr. Wright’s care. The patient, be could safely say had not heard of Dr.
Bovell, she enguired for Dr Aikins, and when told that Dr. Wright was the
admitting physician for the week, she was contented to be put under Dr.
Wright’s care, yet afier all she wag put in Dr. Bovell’s list. She had been
recomended to Dr. Aikins, and, he would venture fo say, knew nothing at all
about Dr. Bovell, and it was Dr. Wright’s week for receiving patients.. How
did it come that she was handed over to Dr. Bovell? He could not help say-
ing that he believed Dr. Clarke did influence her.

My, Lenvox said that he remembered very well the patient was put under
&x, Bovell’s care, for he had visited her with Dr, Bovell,

" 'D1;; Orargx denied most positively that he had ever influenced any pa-
1€D

Dr. Bovell here disclaimed the idea of Dr. Olarke influencing any patient
to be put under kis care,

Mr, BentLRy congidered that the evidence was sufficient to establish the
fact that influence had been used. This was clear. The woman came in,
asked for Dr, Aiking, it was Dr. Wright’s admitting week, and yet the patient
15 placed under Dr. Bovell. This to him was guite sufficient.

Dr. Bovenr presumed that the patient must have been sent in expressly
for that purpose, for if a patient brought a letter to Dr. Aikins or Dr Wright in
his admitting week he generally handed them over,

Dr. Crarxe gaid that this was the firat time he had been accused of show.
ing partiality.

My, Gray,—I heard that partiality was general here before the time that
this woman ¢ame,
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Mr. CagrneMan~—]1 cannot say much about this affair. I know that Burns’s
manner was iu general very rough, but Ican give you mo particularin-
atgnces of it. He was always very rude in language, and harsh in manners.
In regard to pulling teeth, I hapgened to be here upon one occesion, in Dr.
Beaumont’s week. After the Dr. bad left, a man camein with his face wueis
swollen, and asked if I would pull a tooth for him ; Itold him I would sec
Dr. Clarke and get the instruments. I went to Dr. Clarke, and asked forthe in-
struments. He said there was 5o mose teeth to be pulled in the Hospilal, they
must go to the deuntista, The paticnt had consequently to go away without
gettiug bis tooth drawn. I have no hesitation in sayivg that Dr Clarke’s ger-
eral conduct i3 very gentlemanly. But, Tdonot think he bad a right t refuge
he instruments vpor that occasion. The rooms of the Hospital, 1 hulicve,
have been kept as clesn as they could be under the circumstanees. The fo-
inale rurses have general:y been very kind ; and Burus, civce the acraryenes
with Mr. Lennon, has cbapged his deportment a litile, Until th,
the students of the Torcnto School of Medicine Lave lah
disadvantage. They were afrsid to suy anylhing «guinst the Hospital, for
fear of being plucked at their ezvmivation, but they bave a charter now of
their own, and were independ nt of the Medieal Board altogether,

As it wes vow 6 o’cluck the Investigation was adjourned until the follaw.
ing day at noon.
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Fripay, 30th March, 1855,

The examination was resumer this day shortly after 12 o’clock. Dr. Wid-
mer occupied the Ghair for a short time, ashe had done on the previous day
and again gave place io Mr. Beaty who presided to the close of the Inves-
tigation.

Before the investigation opened,Mr.Dixon was asked to sign the evidence he
had given on the previous day. This he refused to do because he considered
there were various statements omitted, in consequence of which a different
colouring was given to the evidence from that which he intended, Had all
his evidence been taken down he would not have refused to sign it,

Mr. Bowgs represeated the imprudence of such a course. The Trustees
had saf the whole day to hear evidence to substantiate the statements made
i that letter, of which he ackuowledged himself the author, and every opper-
tuuity was given him to study whatever he had to say against the Institution
it was very uufair in him to refuse to sign the statements ke had made, and
then in a measurerender all their labour in vain.

Mr. Lenyoy said that the investigation was not properly conducted, and
M. Sheriff Jarvis kad told them so yesterday, and had left the room bhecause
Mr. Dixon was not gettiog fair play.

Mr BenTLEY alse made some remarks in regard to the way in which the
investigation was continned,

#f. Brary and Mr, Bowes contended that the course pursued by the Trus-
tees was & proper one, and that they had a right fo insist upon Mr Dizon’s
signing his evidence.

Mr, Gray who had given cvidence on the previous day in regard to Dr
Clarke baviug influenced a patient to put herself under Dr. Bovell’s care, re-
itcrated a portion of it and stated his conviction that the patient had no
letter of recommendation to any physician, She enquired for Dr. Aiking
and baving been told by him that it was Dr. Wright’s week, she seemed
sutigfied te be put under his care.

Dr. OrarxE said he was convinced when the stafement was made on the
previous day that he would be able to shew by his books that the young
gentleman was in error. He would be 8oty to impute raotives to Mr. Gray.
but his unguarded atatement yesterday bad hurt him (Dr, Clarke) very much,
Dr. Clarke here produced the Bospital book and said he wag prepared to show
by it as well as by the Dr’s that this patient was admitted in Dr. Telfer’s
week and not Dr. Wright’s, Dr. Aikins’s week commenced on the 23rd Oct,
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Dr Wright’s week came next, and was susceeded by Dr. Telfer’s who attpt-
ded the Hogpital from the 8th Nov. to the 10th when he was taken sick and
his place was supplied by Dr. Bovell. On the next day, the 11th Nov,, that
young woman was admitted into the Hospital, and congequently placed
under Dr, Bovell’s care who was officiating in the absence of Dr. Telfer;
Dr, Clarke here produced Dr, Bovell’s book and alsothe diet roll to show
-that they coincided with his own book. Dr. Bovell and Dr, Grant ecould
testify to this also, for they were in the room when he was examining the
patient,

Mr, Lexyox contended that Dr, Bovell did not appear in the Hospital
that day, and that the patient was taken into the Board room while speak-
ing to him, and that the impression on his miud at the time was, that the
patient was influenced, and he had seen no reasen to change his opinion.

Dr. Grant recollected perfectly that Dr, Bovell and he were in the room
at the timealluded to.

Bome little recrimination was displayed in regard fo the time at which
the entries were made,and the amount of weight to be put upon them as re-
garde the date, Mr. Gray contending that sometimes the patient’s names
were not entered in the books for a week affer they had come into the
Hospital,

Dr. Cuarke stated that his own book was made up daily and tharefore
such an inaccuracy could not occur, although he was aware at the same time
that sometimes several weeks elapsed before the patients were entered on the
Dr’s books.

Mr, Frrzazeawp here stated that he had come here to discharge a public
duty; he had been called away upon business, and would endeavor to he back
a8 soon as posgible,

Dr, Wererr said he would take the liberty of meking a suggestion : Mr.
Gray had given evidence to a matter of fact, and he believed that he was
willing to swear to it. He bad gone as far as he (Dr. Wright) conceived
it was necessary for him to go, infactasfar as it was in his power, and
there wos no necessity for disputing about dates to disprove that statement
for they could not do it.

Mr. Dixox eaid he remembered Mr, Gray some length oftime ago maa-

_ tioning the eircumstance to the students ofthe Toronto Scheol. Hs mentinned
italso to Dy, Aikins at the same time.

Dr. Grant asked if it was not ridiculous to think that Dr. Clarke would
putdown a wrong date. He was there himself when Dr. Clarke called Dr.
Bovell into the room to see the patient.

The Omamrxax.—We will now proceed in order. We have got Mr, Gray'a
evidenceand Dr. Olarke had produced his books which contradicled that
evidence. We will proceed with any other testimony.
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Dy, OgpEn having been called upon said, if they. wished himjto ‘speak” to-
any. poing, perhaps it would be better to put guestions to him, ..

“Mr, Baxriey suggested that he should proceed-as: the- others had -dove. -

“Dr. Ocpex,—I wish to state at the outset that I amnot in' connexioni with’
any of the Schools of Medicine that have been named, Yt has besn' said that
all the evidence was from one side. ‘Sofar as'1 have anything to say; it
would not gounder the same category. I have heen five years practising-
medicine. T have been in the Hospital occasionally, and have- observed two:
or three of the servants treat the patients very cruelly. One of these was the
Orderly, Burns, and another, viz. Mrs, Donelly, The other servants I bave
always eonsidered very attentive. I have heard Burps malke use of pro-
faoe and vulger language—Ilanguage immoralin the extreme, I-was spen‘ke.
ing to a student in the hall one-day, and when I stepped into the:. Burgery,,
Burns came in and made use of langnage the most vulgar—such language rs
youcould searcely hear in the lowest bar-room in Toronto. He made use of
the language while asking & question about the young man, and the language
a8 80 vulgar that I turned ‘away in disgust. Thatis all1 know of theger-
vents, With regavd to the attendance of the medicel men, I have come here.
for the purpose of going round with the medical officers. As Y am a young'
man, I wish to get as xouch experience as I can. I have been here hﬁ {:ﬁe,/
hour apecified, and have been told that the physician had been here, and had
gone by eleven o'clock ; and, at other times, 1 have been fold that "they did
not come till three o’clock. As regards cleanliness, I'have heard atudents
who have attended other hespitals, zay, there is no comparison as regards
cleanliness between this and other hospitalz. I have taken patients from
here when their were covered from head to foot with lies ; youw wonld not
have found a square iach upon their body that was not' covered. This Waa
however, from six to seven years pgo when I attended regularly. I' do’ not’
knowso much about it at present. I don’t think however, that the beds ure
ag elean as they ought to be. .-

Mr. Bowgs.—The sheets you know are brown cotton.

Dr. Ocpex.~No—they are white cotton sheets, tined brown by dirt.  As
tegards immorality, I think there is sufficient evidence of that ; at least if you,
Mr, Bowes, were to use such language as I have heard used in the institiation, ¥l
would say you were a very immoral man. ' e

Dr. BeavsionT thought that language might be  considered jrmoral by one
that was not considered so by others, They could only judge of it by hearing the
expressions used. He would therefore request the gentleman to-repeat the
language used. - : L

Dr. Oepey said he could not unless the women were first told to
room.

This having been done, Dr. Ocaxn re
agked Beaumont if he was satisfied

leave the
peated. the vulgar language used, and
5 satisfaction he migh at least have- spared
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blinds the best of men. L

E.'W. Gusrin.—I atfended the Hospital regularly before the Christmas
holidays. -This is my third session, Upon several occasions I have seen the
Orderly, Burns, abuse the patients that have to come here to be treated, T
myself have said to the students that ifa patient whom I knew was coming here
to:be treated and used in the same way that I saw others used,I wounld cause
an. investigation to be made to find out the reéason why he was allowed to go-on
thus. . Upon several occasions I have seen Mrs. Donelly in the ward above, .
abuse the. patients ; and I have, upon more occasions than one, left. the Hospital
under the. conviction that she was under the influence of liguor., I have seen.
vermin creeping over the patients here, and I think it is owingto the Hospital not
being supplied with baths; this 1 have seen occasionally, Ihave seen patients
vo filthy that I passed them without examining them; although anxious to do se,
I have seen Burns abuse patients on several occasions ; I cannot at present mens
tion instances. I did not report it to Dr. Clarke. This is my third session of
attending the Hospital, 1 attended Trinity College last year, I have heard
gronps of persons frequently from both institutions, say that the management of
the Hospital was not what it should be, and that students did not receive the.
inatructions in the Hospital they expected, and thought they were entitled o,
in consequence of the attending physicians not being forward at the hour fixed
for the stndents, I heard it said, both at Trinity College and in the University,
that the Hospital was a dirty place. Several of the students of Trinity College
I kErow would be well pleased if some different arrangement conld be made, as
that they might be enabled to derive the advantages which the Hospital ig cal-
enlated to give, in the way of increasing their knowledge, )

THE CHAaIRMAN.—Can you give the names of those patients you saw =0
filthy that you would not examine them ? ‘

" Mr. GusTIN.—No, I do not remember their names. Iam cextain that the
vermin were not occasioned by a skin disease, but that if they had had = little
20ap acd witer they could have been cleaned,

8. SECORD.~~AS regards the cleanliness of the Hospifal, I can say I have
seen the bed-clothes in a very filthy condition, not on account of the particular
disease of the patients, but on account of the scarcity of soap and water. I have
not attended the Hospital very regularly; I do not consider it worth wasting
ay time upon, as the physicians are seldom to be seen; I have beeu a student
of medicine four years, and have been in the Hospital very often ; I have seen
beds in a filthy condition, both. upstairs and down stairs. 1 did not report this
to Dr Clarke ; I have taken out a ticket for the course ; I have seen very rough
usage to patients coming here, but I don’t know that I could call it cruelty.”
L don’t know how often I have attended during this last segsion; I may have
attendéd twenty times; but I have attended sufficiently often to see that the
Hospital is, in my opinion, mismanaged.
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Rozent EMery.—I have attended the Hospital a year ; my year was up last
October: T have seen lice upon the patients frequently ; some of the medical
gentleman passed the remark that they were counter-irritants. It was in Mrs.
Douelly’s ward that 1 have observed the lice. The other wards have been com~
paratively clean, so far as I have seen ; I have heard Dr. Bovell call upon Mrs.
Donnelly a tdifferent times to inquire about the patients during the night, and
he hardly ever got a satisfac'ory answer from her and, he would have to vefer
to patients in adjoining beds to get information. On one occasion Dr. Bovell
enquired why the brandy ordered to his patiert had not been given, and he
was told that there was no brandy; and he had to send out for it himself for
the patient; I have seen Burns frequéntly shove the patients, both male and
female, about in a very rough manner ; I heard it rewarked by physicians that
he was an old soldier and was only fit to be amongst soldiers; I have seldom
walked the other wards, but they appeared clean when compared with Mra.
Donnelly’s ; I did not call Dy. Clarke’s attention to.it,

Mr, BEnrLey said he wished to put a fow questions to Mr. Lennon if the
Chsirman would permit. Do you know any one in indigent circumstances
who refused to go to the Hospital, in sousequence of the treatment they
thought they would get.

N

Mr. Limwvox.—I was requestad by a Iady to visit a sick person, and did ao ;
and after seeing the disiress in which the persou wasg, I said the best thing
that could be done was to have the paiient removed to the Hospital, as she wan
lying upen the damp flvor upon o miserable atvaw bed. [ stated that if she
would go. I would endeavour to geta medical man to attend her. But the
way 'in which eome of her friende bad been treated—1I thiok her husband—
prevented her fror going. I have heard other persous say they would rather
die than come to the Hospital

Mr. BENTLEY.—Have you known any of the medical gentlemen prescribe
for the patients and nei get what they ordered ¥ .

M. Lewyox.—1 heard Dr. Boveil frequently preseribe brandy, and upon
ope occesisn when Dr. Clarke 8aid fheir waa no brandy, Dr. Bovell turped
round and said, “Clarke, by Jove, I will leave the Hospital if I don’t ges the
remedies I prescribe to my patients?

Mr. Benrrer.—Have you seen any of the servants of the Tustitution, at any
time, nnder the influence of liquor 7

Mr. Lenvos.~The oaly person I have seen under the iufluence of liquor,
wag the resident surgeon. I saw him on two occasions, when he was in that
state. I consider thaton the flest occasion, he was 80 bad that he was not
fit to appear in public. Th: next tims he was talking about using his influ-
ence in favour of Trinity Cullege, and if it was possible for a man to be worse
than he was the first time, ho certainly was the second ‘time. One of the
nurses, formerly in this Hospital, told me to-day, that she considered it the
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general impression of all connected with the Institution, that the folke from
Ro]ph’s school, ag it was usually termed, were worse than dirt. 1 believe,
the woman previous to that time, had not been a year in the city, and had
never known until then that sach & school was in existence.

Mr. Srewart, (City Missionars) here etated that the feeling was very
general amongst poor people egainst going to the Hospitul.‘

A little discussion here took place between the chairman and Mr. Bentley, in
regard to the trustees having prejudged the case, by the letter they had pui-
lished a few days before, aud as to the fact that the Trustees bad paid so much
attention to an anonymous commusication in a newspaper, and yet had paid
no attention to the statement of the Police Magistrate given in a conrt of Jus-
tice—to the effect that Burns was unfit for his situation and ought to be dis-
missed.

The CaalryMan said that the superibiendent, the matrou, and the purses
were all charged with a dereliction of duty. They have heen appointed by the
trustees to discharge the duties devolving on them, butitis said they have
not discharged the-e. If there was evidence enough that they had not done-
what was expected, the trustees would assume the responsibility of discharg-
ing them, and so far ashe was concerned he would recognize the poorest in-
dividual in the Hospital as much as the highesi in if.

Dr. WrieBT having been called upon said, If they wanted any information
from him they had better put questions to hira, The trustees, however,
thought he should give 2 statement as the others had done. ’

Dr. WrigHT then said I am one of the Medical attendants of the Hospital.
In respact to the statement made in the letter regarding Burns, I would ouly
say that I do not consider Burns’s treatment of patients hag been atali mark-
ed by ordinary kindness. Irefer more particularly to what took place a few
weeks ago or, before the investigation was held in the Police Court. This is
my week on duty atthe Hospital as receiving physician, and I may state
that his conduct has been nunexceptionable so far. The change is so marked -
that I cannot fail to notice it. This I atiribute to the investigation which
took place in the Police Court. Seven weeks ago I was on duty as receiving
physician and I took in a patient who got his leg fractured. The way that
Borns removed the clothes from his limb was not characterized by gentleness
to say the least of it. I found necessary to check him while he was doing so
this is the only special cage that I at present remember, but the impression
upon my mind is that his conduct is not at all what i should be. In regard
to the coloured patient, Jackson who was upstairs, Mrs. Donnelly did make the
remarks attributed to her in the letter. Not only go, but she followed me
from one ward to another to induce me to put Jackson out.

Mr. Bowes—What as to the general cleanliness of the Hospital?
Witness.~This is the only Hospital I ever attended. I am purely & Ca-
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nadinn sbudent and as this is the only Hospital T'evér attended:  Tam, conse-
quently, unable to compare one institution with another I can say howsvef
ihat the floors are generally clean but I have seen the bed clothes very oftén
in avery filthy state. Ihave seen lice in the Institution too. Two of the
aurses, one up stairs and one down stairs, I have observed frequently, and I
can say that they have been very attentive to their patiente and have treated
them with ag much kindness ag they could do. I made no complaints to any
one nor should T have done so on any consideration. It struck me as beim
very singular that although Dr. Telfer and Dr. Beaumont had been known.as
Hospital attendants for a length of time, that it rarely happened, that 3 fair
share of surgical practice, fell into their hands. I thought they did not get
their share of surgical practice and my impression was that they would bave
taken it if they could have golten it. Before I became connected with theHos-
pital. I had heard that Dr. Telfer's reputation as an operating surgeon was as
s that of any one connected with the Hoepital under the old systém of
things, and perbaps since.  Dr. Telfer was spoken of as being a very good

perating surgeon, and got a fair share of this kind of practice under the old
system. ‘Dr. Beaumont was also long connected with the Hospital, and 1
hesrd alzn of hig getting a fair share of thiskind of practice. After the change
which took place nearly two years ago, it siruck me that a very large share
of this practice Tell into the hands of Dr. Hodder. I am not prepared to say
whether il was with the consent of Dr. Telfer and Dr. Beaumont that this was
donie vr not. Being a young man and not known as on operating surgeon I
could hardly expectto get as much of this practice, as those -whose reputs
tion was establisked. I did not expect even a fair share, suppesing itwere
egually divided, and in that expectation I have not been disappointed. -~ 7
Dr. Hartowrri—You have given a very straightforward statement ‘and I
have no doult you are sincere in what you have said Lexpect therefore yoi
will give me a siraightforward angwer to this queslion corresponding to your
akatément to the trusteer. You havesaid in regard to Burps ove of the accis-
od partien, that you teink the communication sigred Meuir.alrbtﬁdent hag
had the degired effect, «f making Burns more civil and mors bumaue io the
patients:
Dr. WaeeT—What  stated wae, that sinece the occurrencu al the pollm
«ouis T have noticed & material change oa Burns’s condiicl.
Dr. Harvowsir-—~Yon g0 far stated that the delinguent Burns ‘has agied
fvam lime to time iv a very unbecoming way, and that to a cortdin
you wars of epinion thab the Hospital was not carried on 1o a clsanl
¥ erifl now come to the guestion—do you—or do you ot endorss thie
ments put forth in thal letter, by ¢ Medical ‘)t.udent >

De. Waient- -~Thab ig a question net all called for, )

p Whal do you wish us to underatoad regurding Burnald gsnora)
gondut, : a
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- Dri;Waienr—~My impression ig, that Burng’s treatmont of patients kay not
" been such as I would allow aservant of mine to use iowards the meanest
" pauper coming to my door: i -
HMr, Bowes—As regards the attendasice of the physiciacs—
Dr. WrrenT—1 will not beanswerable for the zitendance of any physician
but myself, I have noticed that Dr. Herrick doea not stiend, and that his
duty is very frequently performed by other miedical gentlemen. I think  he
is generally here in his admilting week to ses some of the out-door patients,
but thoss that are admitted are placed under the eare of some other persoa.
I have frequently seen Dr. Bovell do duty for him, What [ mean to asy
i that Dr. Herrick does not do Hospital duty. With regord to the other
roedical officers they attend pretty vegularly--1 attend my paticvzcts hers as
often as I thnk they require my visite, uvad quive as ofien a3 I would if they
were private patients, When I have not beer: huve Dr. Hodder has been
kind enough to prescribe for out-dvor patients for me, but mors fequently
Dr. Aiking has done this in my abssrce. i do not know of any case where
a patient has suffered in consequence of the neglect of the medical officer
nor even in cousequence of the neglest of the nurses, 1t raay be that some-
times prescriptions ave nob given asthey are ordersd; aud sometimea the
diet has not been attended to properly.

Mr. Lawxon—Have you seen the resident surgeon under the influence of
liguor at any time ?

Dr. Wrrienr—I have seen Dr, Clarke pretty merry, but whether under the
wfluence of liguor or not, I have not the wenns of knowing.

Dr. Corree here stated that Dr. Clarke suffered severely from aftacks of
neuralgia, aud for that severe affiiction bad taken ofton large doses of guinine
and morphia, and he wished Dr. Wright to say whether he was not awars of
this fact.

Dr. Wriear—I have Dr, Olarke’s own siatement that he does—

Dr. Corrze.—I wish to know whether, under this sufferiug which Dr.
Wright is well aware is a most severe one, Dr. Clarke i3 notobliged o *alu
large doses of quinine and morphia?

Dr, WrigHT,—1 have Dr. Clarke’s own statement for it that morphia doss
not do him any good, and therefore I infer he does not take it.

Dr, Correz,~But that does not. follow that he has not taken it,

Dr. WrierT.—Iy expression in regard to Dr.Clarke was most g\_a,rded
T said ¥ did not know that ever I saw bim intoxicated, but Thave eeen bim
merry, gud my opinion {8 that morphia does not produce that effect,” but

. rather the contrary. So far as I have witnessed i3 effects they are thoas of
_.somnolency and siupidity rather than merriment.

Dr,.Correr—That is not the opinion of many medical men,

. Dr..Warenr.~~Egidence can be adduced to show that thai 35 i65 gensrs)
t;andc;ncy. ’
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Dr, Correr~~The question simply was, whether morphia,er any of the pre-
parations of opium, does not produce that excitement. I say it does and 1
will instance the Turks, who as & people are subject to this excitment and
areJconstantly under its exhilirating influence.

Dr. Wrigar—~I may be permitted to state, as thisis a professional matter

" more than any other, that Dr. Cotter here alludes to the effect of one of the
active principles of opium. He must recollect that it is not morphia which
the Turks use, they use opium in its solid state which is a very different
thing. 1 am willing to admit that either solid opium or the tincture of opium
will produce the effects alluded to by Dr.  Cotter, but the general effect of
maorphia is that of a sedative.

Dr.Correr—Does Dr. Wright mean to tell me that a person who has tak-
en certain doses of morphia will not appear as if ke had been drunk.

The Crarriran—Dr. Clarke has been charged with fdrunkenness, and  the
question has been'put by a medical gentleman, whether the particular ‘medicine
zlluded to will produce a state similar to drunkenness.

Dr, WricHT—I stated that the action of morphia is first sedative,

Dr. Correr--Every person knows that morphia is sedative. But I will put
this simple question—Do the preparations of opium not produce an effect similar
to drunkenress.

Dr. WricHT~I havejmyself proposed to Dr.Clarke to take quinine and iron
but he said he derived no benefit from it.

To Mr. Bowes.—1 can state no'charge of neglect on the part of Dr. Clarke.

Dr. ScorT—wished to know what deficiency Dr. Wright had seen in the ar-
rangements of the Hospital which might have been rectified by 'application (o
the Trustees.

Dr, WeicHT—~The want of brandy has already been brought before the

. Trustees. In the treatment of eye affections, leeches were required and they
were not allowed. I bhave taken in persons into the Hospital with chronic affec-
tions when leeches were required, and I could not get them. In other cases
when I have wanted leeches patients have had to get them themselves.

Dr. Scorr—Have you ever represented this deficiency to the Trustees,

Dr. WriGRT—As far as the leeches are concerned I represented it lo Dr.
Widmer. Even atthe present time I ordered a patient to be bled and I was 1o}d
tivat there was not an hospital lance that could be used,

Dr. Scorr—What did Dr. Widmer say in regard to the want of leeches?

Dy, WipuEer replied-—that the Trustees would not grant them? Dr. Clarke

- has told me before that the Trustees had declined furnishing these, as the (ex-

penee of Mrnishing leeches was so great that their funds would not warrant it.

It occurs to me that I'signed some request to the ‘Trustees that instruments
should be got for the, Hospital. ;
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Dr, 8oorr.—Are medical officers allowed to prescribe nny other lignors hut
brandy ?

Dr. WrieET~I am not in the habit of prescribing brandy ai all, and I
do mot know whether it is withheld when prescribed by others. I believe
however, that ale, wine and whiskey, are allowed by the Trustees.

Mr. Bowes stated, that the Trustees found their funds would not warrani
their furnishing it. They continued, however, to supply wine, and beer, and
whiskey tothe patients. It was a mere matter of economy, the withholding
of the braudy in so far a3 the Trustees were concerned,

Dr. Hopper saw thsi from some remarks which had been made, it was
necersary for him to explain that Dr. Bovell and he were the only professors
from Trlnity College, and as the professors of surgery in that collego, had
no conpection with the hospital, consequently Dr. Bovell had handed over
to bim all his surgical cases, and he in return, had handed over to Dr. Bovell sl
his [Dr. Hodder’s] medical cases. He had therefose had a double share of
surgical practice. Independently of that, Dr. Herrick, who bad et aitended
the Hospital for some time past, as most of them had done, had occasionally
sent him sargical cases, and Dr. Beaumont had done the same. Besides thats
he had been industrious in gatting his medical friends in the couairy to eend
in all their ‘surgical cases to him, to the Hospital. That would account very
readily for his having more surgical caces than the others. He merely made
this explanation to disabuse altogether the minds of the Trustees of any uu,
just suspicions that might be attached to Dr. Clarke in this watter. He kagw
there was a feeling that Dr. Clarke had given surgicel cases to him when he
ought not have dene go. That was not the case, and the reasons he had given
would show why he had so large a share of surgical praclico.

Dr. WricHT said that that explanation did not in his cstimation meet the mai-
ter.

Dr. Aikivs.—I do not know all the nurses. Some of them I do kuow. There are
two sisters, one np stairs and one down stairs that I consider good nurses. &0 far
as 1 have observed 1 have seen nothing objectionable in their conduct; I cannoy
speak in the same terms of Mrs, Donnelly; I heard her say that if Dr. Wright left
Samuel Jackson in the Hospital, she would be the death of him, and she urged
Dr. Wright to discharge him. Her Jauguage and conduct were such ihat, had
they been manifested to me, I would have turned her out of the ward and have
had the matter brought before the resident surgeon. As regards her cleanliness, J
can only say that a patient pul under my care experienced the reverse. Jesse
Nunn, the son of a farmer, irom Bolton village, was brought to the Hospital as a
pay patient, and his motber took Jodgings in the city to visit her child while in
the Hospital. Some time alter he came in I gave Mre.Doanelly orders to re-
move the bed clothes. instead of putting on a clean sheet, however, she took a

sheet from the bed of one of the most filthy patients in the Hopsitaland put it
on his bed; the consequence was he was entirely covered with vermin; this his
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“ miother -can substantiate; as-also can the person ‘with whom the'mother-Iodged in
town, becanse she stripped off the boy’s shirt and had it cleaned. Mrs:Deon-
nelly also told the hoy’s father that she was sorry his son was not undey: the care
of Dr. Hodder or Dr.- Bovell, as he would be cured. in . a ghort time. , Dr, Clarke
also urged the mother to, take .away the boy from the Hospital; for he was.certain
he would die. The boy complained very much of Mrs, Donnelly’s harsh con~
duct to him. It was very unkind, for he wag bnta small boy, about 17 years
of age. From the treatment he received, I cousidered the Hospiﬁal was net.the
very best place for him, and directed his mother to remove him to the city. 1
myself have heard Dr, Clarke say that Mrs, Donnelly was very i‘Bughﬁbut that
she was good natured. 1did feel a little hurt at the remark of Mis. Donnelly
that the boy if under the care of Dr. Hodder or Dr, Bovell would have recovered

s0 soon. [ did niot, bring any of these things under the notice of Dr. Clarke; be-
cause I have heard him say that Mrs. Donnelly was rough bnt that'she was'good
natured. I was under the impression that Mrs. Donnelly had heard th¢ state-
fent in regard to the boy from some other source than héf ‘own

knowledge of the circumstances, for T am satisfied that she could not personally
know mucli ‘of the treatment of patients by the medical gentlemen named.
Burng’s general "condact was harsh and unkind. 1 have  hedid
Dr, Clarke frequently correct him for his roughness. "With reference to the
ventilation of the building, it is very bad indeed ; and there is not a water closet
‘in the hospital from top to bottom. I remember that when the first letter appear-
ed in the Oblanist, Dr. Clarke said that every part of that letter could bé &ib.
stantiated,, except that referring to moral pollution ; more’ than that, he Went'on
fo say what I know to be the case, that he had requested the students to petition
the Board of Trustees that the attendance of some of the medical men mlght be
more regular, or ‘that their fees might be returned to them. 'He said ke did every-
thing to keep the patients, clean that hecould ; but there were nio baths, and if a
patient wanted a bath they bad to go down to the washing room. [ have seen
vermin repeatedly uponthe patients in the hospital. - ' '

Dr Scorr,—Are you ‘aWire that there isa diet table pxescubed to the: patlents,
orareyou i, the habit of prescnbmg diet according to the c1rcumstancea ?

Dr AI!LINS did not . consider the diet as deficient in regard-{o quantlty.—home
of my patients have complained of want of foed, and I have prescribed more . for
them ; Ifelt thatI had it in-my power to do go.if-I.considered it necessary.
I remember of the coloured man being uhder my care.  T.don’t know.how often
I-saw him. I know that I did not consider it necessary to give ‘him. tull diet
“because hé  was affected with aneurism. 1 don’t know that I have found.any
difficulty, except in regard to the want of leeches, and I have mentioned -this

-over and over again.. I am aware there is an open bath-in-the hospital,:and it
may be had on-an emergency, but-I-have: never- ordered it.. . The- last time .I
spoke on this subjéct to Dr. Clarke, he-said it-was impossible for the gervanta-to

:biing up water .to: supply suchi a bath. - I do not consider. it ceasy to keep: the
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patients clean without a proper suite ot baths; and éven-therr it weuld be exceed-
ingly diffrcult-to da so -3 looking “at the class of patients that come in here, being
not only poor, but depraved, and their constitutions destroyed.. I have net ab-
saryed any, deficiency in bed-clothing, [have found my prescriptions erdinarily
]Affpared and.sent up. 1 find the medicines always supplied according to my
preseription.  I.think if the medical men ask fur'remedies not provided by the
trustees that they should be allowed. I heard Dr, Bovell say that jyst so soon a,
fever came into the- Hospital, if the trustees would refuse him brandy he would
resign. 1 am in not the habit of prescribing brandy; I know that it is prescnhe'l w
large hospitals at home, but in ordinary|cases, whiskey,or jany otber sursuius
would answer as substitute. I, however, think brandy decide BY u-»n*w
to be kept in the Hmpxtal

Do you think the_ existiug state ol things warranled !be :lm\y
language used in the letter of the. medical student 7 .
~o A1 Aucins—T think a wrong construction is put upon the language, user.

Dy, Scorr.—Do you think the language proper 1

Ds. AiginNs.—I have only once glanced aver the letter and would 1equiy:
read it again before answering your question. 7

Mr. Bextiey,—Have.you avor vear any. peraun in thae instiiobion 1eder the
influence of liquor ? .

-Dr. Awizs, ~1 have nol seeu in) -evsou under Lhe wfluence ¢t higuet bere

,mthm the lass two years. | have s-en persons belonging to thie Juatitvgion
under the intlueiw: of liguor but not within the last L& years.
+ Mv,-BexTLEY | have beard thet Burns was in ihe Asylum,and wee ihere
-uaby ten days when they were obliged to_dismiss hin. Do yor know that
.is the casé;and dozuu know whether he bruught a ceLtiﬁca@e of charac-
P4k - on .. e -

THE CHA_B.MAN obJecued o any atlempt lo impugn the chamuter of Burng b_,'
eugh quesiions, becavze a good character was gs much tv him {Burra) g3 it
wag to James Beaty ar Mr, Bertley '

Gray.—~Have you al avy time, since your actepdance al thie Hoopi tal
1 Qlar}z’e,underviha 1nﬂuencéof11quox'

the ]qglt_... twa Fears, ulfhﬂugh I’haver heard students say t_mt they havu 8een

[N -

Dr. Aixins.—f have seen him uoder the influevce of Jigpor, bus i walin

Dr. RESaELL—-Hare youerer found Dx Clarke mnellentive Jo bis duiy

" Dr. Armive—No. T i zav, for myself, that whalevir | have seked D
Olarke to do, bas been done, I do uot think that he bas neglected any pr
acription that T enfered «ron the books. T ha did ro,it mmzt hava heen an
oversight. ¢

* Dr. Beorr.~Ars you fi the hahit of wnhnp in detail ths mnnyumnmﬂ, gnd
prescriptions for your patients ?
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Dr, Amxws.—Sometimes 1 do, sometimes I do not.

Mr, Gray.—did you at any time hear Dr. Clarke refuse the instruments for
extrasting teeth ?

Dr. Argmis—T have, On one occasion, a poor looking, ill clothed, person
came here to get a tooth taken out, and Dr. Clarke said there was to be no
no more teeth pulled in the Hospital. I asked him what poor people were to
do ? He said they must go to the dentists. 1 got the instruments from him
atthistime. T asked him if this was a rule of the Trustees? I think he said
it was. .

Dr. Cuagke did not remember having said there were to be no more testh
pulled in the Hospital. .

Dr. Amxins-~I again assert that Dr, Olarke said thers was to be no more
teeth-pulling in the Hospital ; and I understood him to say it was & rule of
the Trustees. There were two or three students with me at the time.

Dr Craexi—Did I not say, that I would not give the instruments to the -
atudents, was not that all?

Dr. Atxins—1 state most distinetlty that when I esked what poor peepls
wera to do Dr. Clarke said they must go td' the dentists, or the apothecaries.

Dr, Ovarxe I deny ever having made such a statement.

Here ove of the students made some remark but not sufficiently distinct to
be noted—when the chairman said that he would not sit and be iosulted by
a parcel of young students who scarcely knew auything. 1If they had a ques-
tion to put, let them tell him and he would put it.

Dr. HarrowerL.~From the honourable position which Dr. Aikins holds in
this City, he must be very well aware of the great responsibility of Dr. Clarke’s
position. [Question, question.] 1 have a perfect right to make such remarks, I
want to know if Dr, Aikins does not believe the situation of & house surgeon is
one of a very trying nature 7

Dr. Axins.—] dont think it is so very difficult a position to fill. [ have never
heard any complaints of the great difficulty of it.

Dr. HALLowELL.—Does the learned gentleman not think, that having so
many tastes to please, his position is rendered more difficult than it would be
under ordinary circumstances.

Dr. Auxins.—I do not see that he has any tastes to please at all—His duty
is to put np the medicines prescribed by the medical officers.

Dr. Havvowerr.—Has the general tenor of Dr. Olarke’s conduct been such
as tojmeet Dr.}Aiking’s approval 7

Dr. Argins.—I answered that question before,

Dr,;HarLowgLr.—~Did Dr. Aikins, in his position as physician in this Hos-
pital, ever see anything that he felt it his duty, not only to the Trustees but to
the public, to report 1
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Dr. Arxivs.—Nothing further than I have stated.

Dr, HatLowerL.—Did Dr. Aikins not state either directly or by implication,
that when Dr. Clarke read that letter [signed Medical 8 $ udent] over to him that
he agreed with the tenor of it.

Dr. Argins,—I have answered that question in this way, Dr, Clarke himself
said that every statement in that letter could be substantiated, except that of
moraljpollution.

Mr. Bowes.—Does Dr. Aikins believe the management of this Hospital is
such as to give the impression thatthis Institution is in astate of moral pollution?

Dr. Arxgrns.—I have not read the letter sufficiently to see its bearing. But
if, by moral pollution he meant prostitution, then, I say, it is entirely incorreet.

Mr. Bowrs,—Have you known any patient complain: of the treatment they
received in this Hospital.

Dr. A1gi¥s.~—One patient yesterday,complained to me of the treatment of
Mrs. Donrelly.

Mr. Bowgs.—~Do you know that any patient left the Hospital in consequence
of the neglect of the medical attendants, under whose charge they were 1

Dr, AIxIng.--A patient under my own care, about five weeks ago, said she
did not think she was not recovering quick enough, and would leave the Hospi=
tal, but this was not in consequence of neglect.

Mr. Bowss,~-What is your opinion in regard to the cleaniinesa of the Hose
pital 2

Dr. Axing,—I think there is not se much attention paid to the” cleanliness of

the patients as there should be, but I attribute this chiefly to the want of h aths
tbroughout the building.

Mr. BowEs.—Is it the duty of the physician to%enter the names of the patients
in his book, and the diseases with which they are afflicted.

Dr. Aixing,—This is generally done, butit depends, very much npon the na-

ture of the disease. »

Dr, TrLFER.—Have you seen me frequently at the Hospital at the regular
hour:

Dr, Arxing;—] have seen you often at the regular hour:

Mr. Lennon.—I stated yesterday, that T never since the time I had taken out
a ticket had had the pleasure of walkihg the wards of the Hospital with Dr.
Telfer, because he always came here about 11 o’clock, and was generally through
before any of the students came forward. I stated so distinctly ; and I also said
Ihad never had the pleasure” of walking the wards with Dr., Herrick, for I had
never seen him there but ou the first day I went there,

 Mr. Bowgs.~Have you observed any jealousy manifested between the '.vo
schools 2
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is a feeling of jealousy both among students and among, the medical |
often been a puzzle to'me that Dr. Telfor who has had ihe reputation of being,

the most skillful operating surgeon in the Hospita!, gete Hio practice of that kind

in the Hospital. I cannotunderstand how his private operations stil
and his operations in the Fospital all at ‘once cease. - Yet, itisdfa
I know. : o s

Mr. Bowss —Have you noticed any partiality ouilis _part of Drl Ularke”
regard to putients when they came in here. ST )
Dr. Atezxg—1 havenot. But | have observed tuat iliere has ot beeuthe
shine amoust of attention to Dr. Wright and myself, by at lesst two “of the
aurses, Barns and Donelly, as to the other medieal men. Dr. Clarke’s gene:"
tal bearing in thig respecthas of late been so marked that almost every Onv
noticed it, wasall in favour of Trinity Qollege. 1 ecan ot put- my ' fihges-
upou any particular facts, because I do not think it at all likely- thas factsof
that saturs would come neder my observation. I eould mot point. 0 any’
ane ¢ase where I could say that Dr. Clarke had departed from_the-rule. of the

Yostitution, in regard to placing patieuts under the care of any  particular
medical officer.  But ab the same time 1 agoin repeat that his genera ring

i3 in favor of Trinity College. The receiving physician for’ the weék, Has
the disposs] of the patients tor tha week except ench cases as those alresd)

mentioned. ' ’ ' ’

“iiY, BowEs,—1s il custoraary for partien to send patienis (v the Hospital to
Be put under the care of certain medical gentlemen.

Dz, A1ETNS,~1¢ way be, but unless the order is by oaw i the vegular wmeds:
ical attendante of the Hespital, it is not attended to, 8o far 28 T am personally.
aware. st

Mr. Bentrsy.—~Ds  you luow of any instauce where a patieat was.remo-
ved from the Hospital uuder some influsnce to get an operation performed,

Dr. Amme—L do. A patient came in  here under my care, and it wes
Jeemed necessary that an operation sheuld be performed. That patient was
remdved shortly afterwards, and the operation was petformed in 4 tavern:
within eighteen hours of the time he left the Hospital. I state most distinetly
that T believe influence was used to getthat patient rerdoved, but-T-do’ mol
know the partien (hat used the influence,nor the echannels through which that
influence was used. The patient was removed shortiy after he came to the
Hospital, end the operation was perforraed by some of the medical attend-
ants of the Hospital in a tavern shortly afterwards. .

" -Mr. Lexyon.—Have you reason to  believe the patient came (o this city =
strapger, that you admitted him to the hospital and that it was -foundnecea-
sary that the limb ehonld be removed, and when youcame to_ perform the
aperation. the patient objected, and afterwards went ous inte & tavern and
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had :it.;performed by-Dr, Hodder, Dy, Bovell, anc.Dr.. Philbrick ? Have you
redson to think that these gentlemen did not treat you with courtesy that
they-would haye manifested towards one of the other -professors ? And -are
you aware that the expense of supporting: hhm man in the tavern was horne
by these: three medical officers.

- Dr. Arxrvs—That the patientrefused * to allow ‘me to operate was clear
enough, and was dismissed from the Hospitel in consequence, T do not know
personally, but 1 was told that the operation was performed by D, Philbrick,
Dr. Bodder and Dr. Bovell within eighteen hours after he le{t the Hospita) ¥
do not know who supported the man in‘the tavern, ' ---

Mr LenvoN—Do you think Dr. Bovell treated you with that vespect oa the
sceasion with which you would have treated him ?

Dr. Ammms~I do not think that if Dr Bovell bad dismissed a patient
that—

The CraRMAaN~] would just like to know what the Trustees of the H:ec
pital have to do with the opinions of these medical gentlemen, They seém
tohave different opinions ia regard to their abilities, but I do not see thaf; the
trustees could settle that for them.

Mi. LENNON.—All the ebarges Thad against the Trustees I brought forward
yesterday but Iwas desirousto have that question answered distinetly.

- Dt. Boverr here stated that he kuew nothing at sll aboul the patlent as:
til within an hour of the time of the operation.

- Dr. Azzmis—I understood the operation was pertormed by Dr. Bovell aud
Dr, Hodder,  but that the patient was considered under Dr. Philbriek’s
care,

Dr. Hodper here denied moat positively, and with considerable emphasis
that he had anything to do whatever with the case, further than assisting
Dr. Phllbnck when he was asked by bim to doso.

Mr. Bowes—Have you any suspicions that influencs wan exerted lo get
the patient removed.

Dr. Arxnrs—My impression most decidedly is, that inflence was used i
the Hospital, but I cannot say by whom. I havealso understood from Mr,
Liennon that it was customary to notify the students of Trinity College when
an operation was to be performed, without votifying the other students at all.

““The CitarrmaN-~Is it the impression of the students of the Toronto Schoo!
of Medicine that they are not treated with that courtesy and attention with
whicli-the students of Trinity Oollege are treated. '

. Dr. Argmes—It is, and 1 have heard them remark so repeatedly.

.Dr.:HobbpEn here stated that he was not aware of the patient having !. (¢
the] Hospitel ; that Dr; Philbrick called upon-him,and agked him to assist i
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an operation. He did not refuse to go, aud he would not have refused,
bad Dr. Aikins, or any other medieal gentleman, asked hia assistance. He
heard afterwards that the man had left the Hospital, i consequence of what
some of the patients in the same ward had said to him. It was simply
irom the statements made by the patients in the same ward—patients who
‘had been operated upon by other medical men-—that he refused. They
recommended him net to allow Dr. Aikins to take his limb off, and, in
consequence, he refused. He merely mentioned this to preventa wrong
impression being formed.
This closed the proceedings of the second day.

SarvRDAY, 318t March, 1855,

The investigation wes resurmed this morning. Mr. Beaty in the chair.

MI;ELENNON said hehad aquestion or two to put to one of the witneases.

Mr. Bowes said they had endeavored to give every one an opportunity
10 come forward to substantiate the charges made in that letter. They were
still waiting for any person to come forward., He would wish, however, that
gentlemen when they came forward would confine themselves to what had
come under their own knowledge, Whatever had been stated on the evidence
of a third party, would not be accepted as evidence by the trustees, and it
would therefore save time if they would confine themselves to facts. He
would ses that Dr, Clarke, and Dr. Bovell, and the other medical officers
were confined strictly to their own knowledge of facts. If they referred to
what they heard from any other gentleman he would not consider it as the
slightest evidence unless that party was brought forward to give evidence him-
pelf. He would not permit them to state anything here which they had
heerd from any other party,and by this meanghe hoped they would get more
speedily through with the testimony.

Mr. LeEnvoN.—I have a question to put to Dr. Aikins, if I am in order.
Is Dr. Aikios aware whether the trustees have been made aware of the
fact of of Dr. Herrick’s non-performance of Hospital duty, and Dr. Beaumont’s
stating that he would attend at such hours as snited himself ?

Dr. Amns.—I am not aware whether the trustees as a;body have been
made acquainted with the circumstance, but I brought the matter before
Dr, Widmer, sz chairman of the board. I atated to him plainly that the
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students complained of Dr. Herrick’s non-performance of duty, and of D
Beaumont’s coming at such hours as prevented them goiog the rounds
with him to see his palieats, and of Dr. Beamont’s stating that he would
visit his patients at whatever hour suited himself best. I pointed out to him
that there was a rule in the Hospital which he hoped he would abide by.
I addressed Dr. Widmer, as chairman ofthe trustees, but I did not send
him a written communication 2t the time. This is I think about twelve
months ago.

P

ir. LmxnoN.~Have you heard it urged that the whole staff should
retire in case the trustees refused such remedies as were considered mecessary
for the treatment of the diseases in the Hospital ?

Dr, Awgivs—I dont know that the whole medical staff had made such a
statement, but I heard Dr. Bovell say that he thought the whole staff
should resign, if they were not allowed what was required—one of the things
mentioned was brandy. Dr. Bovell said that as sonn as a fever patient
ceme into the Hospital if the trusiees refused braudy he would resign.
I don’t koow that he referred to any thiog else ub the time. I do net
know that leeches were mentioned, but I know that this was a complaint,

Mr. Lzwvox-—Do the medical officers of this Hospital treat you with that
courfesy you expeet from your position ?

Dr. Ammivs—Some of them have, and some of them have not, but this
to me,is a watter of indifference. I shall never make any difference in
my courtesy to them in consequence. I have mno desire tv make any ac-
cusation against any medical officer in this Institution.

Mr, Lenyon—Are yuu willing to name avy instance when you cousider-
ed you were treated with disrespect, by any of the medical officers of this
Institution,

Dr. Amxins—I don’t koow that I should be compelled to answer that ques-
tion.

The Crmamaman—You are at liberty Lo refuse to answer any question that
you think proper.

Dr. Amzivs—I cansay that in several operations of Dr. Beaumont, X
have not been consulted, while other medical men, not helonging to the
Institution, have been consulted. No information haz heen given me of
sach operations, but I don’t know that the Trustees expect that information
should be given me when an operation is to take place,

Mr. Bowts—The Trustees expect thal due uotice should be given to all
medical attendaunts when any operation is to be performed.

Mr. Lexvon—If you were about to perform an operation would you thiuk
it your duty to take the udvice and assistance of the medical staff of the
Hospitalin preference to that of any other medical {gentlemen who might
even be present?
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Dr. Amgms—] most decidedly would never think of passing by them,
and asking the advice or assistance of any medical gentleman not conniected
with the Institution. I would not doit. :

Mr. Lenwox—Have you any proof that messages have been sent to Trinity
College when an operation was to be performed, and no message has heen
sent to the Toronto Sehool ?

The Cmamemay did not think that the by-law required him to seod notice
to students ab all.

Mr. Lexxon—If we can prove that messages have been sent lo Trinity Col-
lege when an operation was to be performed, and no message sent to the To-
ronto School, it will show that favouritism has been shown to one Institution
while the other has beeu neglected.

The Cramyan did nob think the resident surgeon was bound to send no-
tice, but if he does 80, it may show u species of favouritism on his part.

Mr. Lenvon—Have any of your patients while in the Hospital ever observed
to you that the other medical officers evidently disliked you, and did they
give you any reason for this ?

Dr. Aixins—This bas been mentioned to me once or twice by my patienta.
The reason given is, that I am avery young man, and that some of the
older ones did not like to see me successful in my operations.

My, LENNoN—Do you think it possible that Dr. Clarke can take so warm
av interest in favour of Trinity College without, at the same time, imost
seriously impairing your usefuluess in this Instituiion, in the minds of all con.
nacted with the internal management of the Institution ?

Dr. Argins—I was not here when Dr, Clarke stated that he had so warm an
interest in Trinity Joilege bui I uaderstand he saidso. 1 don’t think he
could take a desp interestin the students of one school withont prejudicing
them in regard to another school. -

Mr. Bowes—Dr. Clarks did not state that hehad exerted anyinfluence in
regard to that (ollego.

Mr. Lenyon—-He stated that he was decidedly in favour of Trinity College
becauze it was his Alme Mater, and becanse it was founded npon the religion
be professed, and because it had a full staff of professors.

Dr. Crarxt said he would demand that as resident medical officer bere,
he should be protected. The parties who had accused him had no rtght to
bring forward any charges which interfered with his right of private judg-
ment, he would not submit to it. These charges were notl founded upon any
violation of the rules laid down by the Trustees. What he had said before
he would eay agein. He preferred Trinity College because it was “his alma,z
mater, and becauge he thought it had the best staff of medical professory in
Upper Oanada, and if any young man was Tecommended to his care, he
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weuld send him to that college. He wasnot ashamed of the religion he pro-
fessed—(warmly.) He was here asa gentleman, and he requived the same
treatment as a gentleman should get, and he demanded it.

Mr. Bowrs—Beyond what the rules of the Institution say, they do not
waut to interfere; thuy did not want to have heard anything at all in refer-
ence to that point. He would again say that he did trust that the professional
stiquetie which governed medical men should not be lost sight of They
might asl if chis professor, or that professw was competent %o discharge his
duties, bub hey bad uo wish s 0 tarher,

2Xpiaia to your wind
4 of cis Lasinubion?

e, Lesvos-—Does «oi iuis tielr
the dereiisfou of daty vuthe pucors

,\S"J,UAU“L,L'
of L e dome

Dr. Arging—I repeat agais wias L stateld gesiertiny, ihat I would never
J 3

ask anything belter irom ssrvaass than «what L raceive from some of them. I
only say if thisadvocaey in preferenceis open and warm, ivwill have the
effect stated, ecpecially with unconscientious gervanie.

" -Mr, Lenvow way about to put another question, when soms of the audience
hissed slightly, afier somae rewarks ia referepca thereto, he puta question in
reference to the boy that was removed from the Hospital at Dr. Aikins direc-
tiens, but Mr. Bowes objected, as the parents of the boy were not present to
answer for themselves. The question wes then put from the chair in this
form,

The Crarryan—Have the parents of this boy ever told you that Dr. Clarke
advised them to remove the boy from the Hospital ?

Dr, Amxmvs—TYes, both father and mother have, because they were afraid
from what was stated that the boy would die in the Hospital.

Dr. Crarxg—You said thal the air of the Hospital was not agreeiug with
him.

Dr, Aigivs—7Yes, and Ithoughtthe conduet of Mrs, Donelly was not agrees
ing with his1, The pareats told me prior to the introduction of the catheter
into his bladder that Dr. Clatke had advised them to remove the boy, and
this, consequently, was before the convergation T had with Dr. Clarke in re-
gard to that matter.

Dr, Crarxe.—Ialso told Dr. Aikins that, in my opinion, the boy’s health
wa$ such that he could not stand to be operated upon, we talked about that
boy repeatedly. '

Dr. Arxins.—Dr. Telfer stated also that the boy’s health was not in such a
state to be able to undergo an operation. I do not deny that Dr, Clarke and
Ihad a conversation about the boy. I do nob think, however, that although
Dr. Clarke advised the parents of the boy to take him away, that he meant
to injure me by any statements he made to them. Baut his statements were
calculated to injure me, although not made with that intention.

Dr, CrarkE~What hasheen my general conduct towards your patients?
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Dr. Arxms.—T answered this question yesterday. I stated then that Thave
never had any difficulty with you.

Tar CrarryMaN.—Really and truly, gentlemen, we are men of business, a.ud
to go onat this rate it would take two or three months to get through with
the evidence. We have not come here to hear opinions. We want facts, al-
though they would be very happy to hear all these points discussed if they
had time.

Mr. Lenvon.—Did you consider the reason stated by Dr. Hodder, for that
man leaving the Hospital, was sufficient ?

Dr. Arcivs.—T don’t think it was offered by Dr. Hodder as asatisfactory
reason for the man leaving the Hospital. His reasons, if given for that ob-
jeet, I would consider useless and frivolous. It was stated by Dr. Hodder
that patients who had been operatéd upon inthe Hospital urged this man
not to allow me to operate upon him.

Dr. CLikxe.—The man stated that he would not allow Dr. Aikins to op~
erate upon him, and Dr. Widmer recommended his dismissal, if he refused to
allow Dr. Aikins to operate upon him.

Mr. Bowes.—Have you heard any of the medical officers or any {other offi-
cers of this Hospital use abusive langnage.

Dr. Amrss—Inever criticised the language of any of the medical officers ;
I would never think of doing such a thing.

Mr. Bowes.—Have the officers of this institution inany case used abusive
languagein your hearing, I refer to the medical gentlemen attending this
Hospital.

Dr. Amiss.—I don’t remember having heard any of them.

Dr. Ricaarpsoy had a little knowledge of something that transpired 15 or
16 months ago in connexion with the Hospital, and would like to know whe-
ther the complaint made by Dr. Aikins in regard to the vefusal of Dr. Bean-
mont, to eome to the Hospital, at a certain specified hour, was in consequence
of one ofhis patients in the hospital affected with aneurism, having been
disturbed.

Dr. Amxins.—In answer to Dr. Richardson, I have simply to say that I did
not complain to Dr. Widmer of Dr. Beaumont not doing his duty ; I have no
right to interfere with him or any medical officer in doing his duty. I stated
to Dr, Widmer that the stndents complained to me that Dr. Beaumont did not
come here to the Hospital in time to meet them, to allow them to have the ben_
efit of seeing his patients ; Tnever heard any of the students say that Dr. Beau .
mont neglected his patients.

Dr. RromarpsoN.—Did not that arise from his patient having been interfered
with by some of the students at that time in his absence.
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never heard any of the students say that Dr, Beaumont did not attend to his
patients,

Dr. TELFER.—Dr. Beaumont attends in his week for admibting patients
but he asserts that at all other times he will attend his patients at any hour he
chooses. .

TaE Cmarryay.~—T think that Dr. Aikins said that Dr. Beanmont did not
attend at the hour mentioned in the by-law.

Dr. Ricaarpson.—Did not this complaint originate shortly after the oper-
ation for aneurism.

Dr. Arxins.—I will state most distinctly that it could not have done so,
becanse it has been a complaint for four or five years fo my certain know-
ledge.

Dr. RicEsRrDS0N.~Did not Dr. Beaumont refuse to attend at that time be-
cause he was unwilling his patient should be disturbed. The fact was this,
that Dr. Beaumont had a case of aneurism, which required & particular kind
of treatment. He was anxious to prevent any person interfering with his pa-
tient. He would ask whether it was within Dr. Aikins’s knowledge that Dr.
Stratford came here and took the students of the Toronto School of Medi-
cine into that ward and disturbed this patient, after Dr. Beaumont had given
strict orders thatno person should be admitted, and not only so, but that Dr.
Wright did the same thing.

Dr. Arxiys.—1I do not know anything of the kind, so far as Dr. Wright is
concerned. I did hear, however, that something of that kind had occurred,
in regard to Dr. Stratford.

Mr. BenTLEY wished to know whether the mere fact of the presence of a
number of students would be apt to affect injuriously any patient at such a
time.

Dr. Axins.—In some particular cases it might.

Dr. Hopper having been called upon to give his evidence, spid he was anx-
ious to read that letter signed Medical Student, and having done so, he
would simply wish to ask Mr, Dixon whether he i the 2uthor of that letier.

Mr, Dixon—1I stated distinetly that there is not a single word in that let-
tar but what had emanated from my own brain,

Dr. Hopper—I am very sorry to hear you say so.

Dr. Harrowsrl Iwould ask whether Mr, Dizon was prompted to wiite
that letter ?

No answer.

Dr. Hooper—1I consider that letter false, from beginning to end. All the
testimony produced here has not proved one charge. The character of the
witnesses, too, ought to have some weight. I would, therefore, beg to atate
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that the character I have heard of that young man, I am sorry to say—(hear,
hear)—is far from what would give credence to the statements that have
appeared. If rightly informed, that young man wag once a preacher of the
QGospel, and that he was—

Mr, Dixon—Since you have made allusion to that, I am willing that you
ghould have the testimony of the Rev. Enoch Wood,as to my leaving the
ministry. I have no hesitation in referring you to that gentleman for my
character.

Mr. Bowes here objected to any more irrelevant matier being introduced.
There had been too much of that already, and he hoped the parties would
confine thewselves simply to the facis, they had either to prove the charges,
or to show that the statements in their letter was untrue.

My, Dixon said, Dr. Hodder bad made insinuationsregarding his character,
He would solemnly declare that he was never dismissed from the ministry—
that vo charge was ever brought against him-—but that he resigned from
motives and reasons which he could easily state. if necessary., He wonid
call ypon Dr. Hodder to state whether any charge had ever been brought
against him ?

Dr. Hooner madeno reply, bub passing from that subject without farther
remark said, with respect to the charges made against Burns, he would say
thathe had never seen him use any undue violence in any one single icstance
whatever, nor had he known him to be guilty of auy dereliction of duty
whatever. Heis certainly not the most polished man in the world. He is
an old soldier, and like all old soldiers is in the habib of obeying orders in
rather a drusque manner, butthat was all that he had ever seea about him
Witk regard to the nurses generally, he did not think there was a public.
Tostitution in this country where they performed their duty better than in
the Hospital. Withregard to cleanliness, perhaps it might be better mana-
ged in some respects, but he attributed that entirely to the building, and not
at all fo the servants, for better servants he had not seen. He had seen dirty
beds, butthey were changed as often as they ceuld be. He had an old pa-
tient upstairs at the present time who was very difticult indeed to keep clean.
With respect to vermin, he would say that it was impossible to keep such
places clear of them, but it is no worss in this respect than other Hogpitals,
and not perhaps werse in that respect than many abodes of the poor, He
had visited houses of this kind, public Hospitals, in England, Scotland, and
France and Germany, he had seeu patients, corered with vermin in all these
Ingtitutions, patienta carn overed with vermir, and how way it possible

they could b~ ey 1o thep
Dr. Hovper he e letier ard paid chere a ¢he of cruelty
preferred. I Lnva sever secn anyting jo the Hospital to justify euch a

charge at leagt in regard to any seivant of the Ho'spnal. If I have ever
seen if, it was on the part of one of the medical officers. The charge of moral



o

55

pollution he did not think could be substantiated. I have never witnessed
such a thing either on the part of patients, nurses or medical officers. T am
not aware of anything of the kind existing in the Hospital, By moral pol-
lution I mean of course an immoral course of conduct, either licentionsness
of speech or improper intimacy between male and feraale patients.

Mr. Bowes— What medical officer do you refer to as prociising cruelty.

Dr. Hopper—The medical officer. to whom I alluded wasDr. Aikins, I
was personally cognizant of two separate instances of cruelty practised by
Dr. Aikins, The first was in aun operation for fistula in perinco. Inthat case
Dr. Aikins made a transverse incision in the perineum instead of a perpendic-
ular one which is the usual made. The second act of crueliy was in his per-
sigting to operate upon a boy named Jesse Nunn after he had repeatedly
failed in his attempts to get the catheter into hisbiadder. I have been credi-
bly informed that that boy was on the table five different times upwards of
two ‘hours each time, and would say that Dr. Aikins ought to have had
the president and the senior officers of the Hospital to zssiat him ifhe was
not able to perform the operation himself. With respect to the success of the
operation, I believe that it was a student who told him Dr, Aikins where
he would find the urethra, and I beiieve that afier this-information he
succeeded.

Mr. Bowrs—Was there any other Surgical operation performed in this Hos-
pital which you considered unscientifically performed.

Dr. Hopper—Iwas only witnessto the two 1 have mentioned. I was nog
present at the commencement fof the operation onthe second case, although
Dr. Aikins stated to the contrary. I came into the reom while the boy wag
on the table and found a secton made down to what I supposed to be the
urethra. Ilooked at itand from its shining appearance believed it to be the
urethra. I had not an opportunity of passing the probe, but I believed it turned
out to be afalse passage. 1 have not witnessed any other operation by Dr.
Aikins since ,but I would say that most of the operations performed by him¢ Dr
Aikins) have not been performed in 2 skillful manner. I have been told that in
an operation performed by him where an amputation was made below the knee
it was performed in so unskillful a manner that the man very narrowly escap.
ed losing his life. '

A StupEnT--You will be pleased to observe Mr., Chairman, that this is only
hearsay evidence.

Dr. Hopoper indignantly-~I don’t wish to be interrupted by boys.

Mr Bowss—Are there any other cases that you know of?

Dr. HoopEr—There was the case of a patient named Grace Sage, and a man
in the lower ward aflicted with Opthalmia. Thesetwo patients were in the
Hospital for two months, without having a prescription ordered to them: The
former of these cases is still extremely doubtful in conseqecnce of this neglect.
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There wag another case, that of a woman named, Grace Heeley, who came into
the Hospital with a ifractured -arm and T have been told that the patlent' h.ad
lost the use of the arm in consequence of the unskillful treatment of Pr. Aikins
I think that these were sufficient to prove want of skill and want of professional
knowledge on the part of Dr. Aikins. He considered Dr Aikins unﬁt' to
have charge of patients in a public hospital, either in a Medical or Surgical
point of view .

Mr. Bowrs—With respect to the general management of the Hospital as you

" have had experience in different hospitals, how do you think this one will stand
comparison?

Dr: Hopper—With regard to the ability and attention of Dr Clarke, [ would
gay that a more skillful’or attentive restdent Surgeon could not be found. I be-
lieved that Dr. Clarke knows his profession as well as any man in Toronto,
and is as attentive to his duty as any medical man possible could be. I know

that Dr.Clarke has attended my patients here wtih as much interest as if he had
to reap the benefit himself.

Mr. Bowes—Have your prescriptions been generally attended to promptly.

Dr. Hoooer—I have occasionally ordered a change of medicine on going my
rounds, end on the following day I have found that the patienthad not got the
medicine, but [ attribute this to my own neglect in not entering the prescrip-
tion in the book, Iam the only party to bear the blame in all such cases.

Mr. Bowes—Do you think this Hospital is managed as well as can be done
with the means within our reach?

Dr. Hooper—Thought the hospital was as well managed as possible with
regard to diet, with the exception of brandy. He would here state that the
trustees might not he aware that in particular cases brandy will remain  on
the stomach of a patient, when whiskey would not.

In answer to Mr. Bowes—Dr. Widmer said that if good malt whiskey was
supplied, brandy might be dispensed with. He had lived as amedical prac-
titioner both in a civil life and a military life and considered that, for Medi-
cal purposes, any good spirit although it had not the aroma of brandy was
just as useful as brandy as a stimulant.

Dr. HoppER—said as a general rule he thought that the good beer, and the
excellent wine and whiskey provided by the Trustees would answer every
purpose, but there were some cases when brandy would agree with the stomach
of a patient when none of the others would do as a substitute.

The CrarrMan—Do you know of an instance Where medical mien have or-
dered brandy and ithas been refused,

Dr. Hovper—Dr. fBovell has said so and he

(Dr. Hodder) had ordered
braedy himself frequently.

Mr. Bowss.—What do you know respecting Mrs. Donnelly as a m‘lrse ?



8

Dr. HoppEr.—I believe Mrs Donnelly is & perfectly sober and trustworthy
nurse. I have never seen her in such a condition as to excite the slightest sus-
picion that she had taken what she ought not to have taken. She hns always
obeyed any orders I have given her, and attended to the patients regularly
Like Burns she is not polished, but so far as I have seen her, she does her
duty faithfully. Ihave never seen the slightest disrespect on her part to any
of the anthorities of the Hospital. With respect to the students, they have
always paid the greatest courtesy that o medical officer could expect. Mrs.
Donnelly’s ward isnot so clean perhaps as the others, but that does not
arise from any want of care on her part but on account of the particular kind
of patients that are placed under her charge. I have ordered baths oceasion-
ally, and always understood that the patients got them ; I have never heard
anything to the contrary; I think patients could always have a bath if abso-
lutely necessary. Ido not know that the bath is a portahble one, butin cases
where I have ordered it the patients go to it. It is usual in general cases in
other Hospitals, where patients require a bath, to go to another room. I
have seen in England a bath brought to the bedside of a patient but inlarge
Hospitals in Furope generally there are bath houses where all the patients
are required to go.

Mr. Bowes.—Whatis your opinion with respect to Dr. Clarke’s moral char-
acter.

Dr. HoppeEr.—I have known Dr. Clarke for some years; I have been ate
tached to this Hospital for two years, and from my experience I can say that
I helieve him to be an upright, honest, sober, gentlemanly person in every

r espect ; I know nothing against his moral character whatever. He would
not permit any immorality at all in this Hospital if he knew of it. Thavenever
seen him exercise the {slightest partiality to any student or students over the
others ; I have never known any case in which Dr. Clarke was drunk in this
Institution.

Dr. HALLOWELL.—As you have testified to the character of Burns, I want to
know if you ever heard that that functionary had been dismissed from another
Tnstitution.

Dr. Hopoer.—Not until yesterday. I heard that Burns bad been a ser-
vant at the Asylum, but I never heard that he had been dismissed. The su-
perintendent of the female servants has discharged her duty in a most exem-
plary manner ; I have never known any of the patients suffer for want of
proper.diet ; but when hungry wretches come in here, I have no doubt they
will think Hospital allowance very scanty.

Mr Bowes—Have you known any patients leave the Hospital in conse-
quence of neglect on the part of the medical officers of the Institution?

Dr. Hopper.~I am not aware of any. I have known themfleaving the TTos-
pital convinced they might do better elsewhere, but not from neglect on ibe
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part of the medical officer. The only one I can bring up at the moment is
that man that refused to be operated on by Dr. Aiking, and consented rather
to leave the Hospital,
" Dr. Ams.~—Do you not remember also a woman upstairs who refused to
he operated on by Dr. Hodder, and left the Hospital on the same day?

Dr. HoobEr.—I was not at all anxious to operate upon her, because it was
a very malignant disease, and I considered the removal of the limb the only
chance she had of her life.

7. Pr. WrieaT.~—What as to Hospital lances ?

Dr. Hopper—I consider the Hospital badly off for instruments, and I
should have said that leeches had been refused by the trustees.

Mr LenyoN—I wish to know whether it is usual to leave it optional with
patients whether they will have a limb removed or not.

Dr HovperR—It is"under certain circumstances.

Dr Arxing—1I am prepared to say that that woman who refused fo be ope-
rated upon by Dr, Hodder consented to have her limb removed after she left
the Hospital.

Mr. LENNoN—Do you think it possible that any of the patients in the Hos-
pital could influence others in regard to medical attendants ?

Dr. HopoER—1It is perfectly easy to do so; a man with a fractured arm
could easily walk to the bed-side of another patient. Patients as well as
students can exercise their own discrimination, and they have a perfect right
to leave the Hospital if they find they can’t be operated on as they wish.

Dr. WrigaT—What case had been operated on in this Hospital by Dr.
Aikins before that one case alluded to?

Dr. Hopper—The only cases are the two I have mentioned.

Dr. WricaT—I do not recollect the exact time when the first case alluded
to occurred, but I think it was about three months after we joined the Hos-
pital. Now I should like to know what possible connection there could be
between the cases.

Dr. Hooper—-1 have no doubt that public rumour wes the cause of the
objections made to Dr. Aikins operating.

M r LexnvoN—Happening to be present while the operation for fistula was
going on, I wish to ask Dr. Hodder if he did not come forward and take the
probe into his hand and remain nearly a quarter of an hour trying to fiad a
passage into the boy’s bladder ?

Dr. Hopper—I came forward, but I did not take Dr. Aiking’s place.

Mr. Lexyon—Did you not use the probe ?

Dr..HODDER-—I used it in my left hand. I did not take Dr. Aikins's place,
and did not see the incision properly.
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Mr. LENNoN-- was present on that occasion, and I assert it to he correct
that Dr. Hodder was offered every opportunity of using the probe. He had
as good an opportunity of doing so as Dr. Aikins had, and that he failed in
introducing the probe into the bladder. This I can prove, and would take
my oath upon.
¢; Dr. Hopper—1 was close to the patient, if you mean by *close to the
patient,” that Y was as close to his head as Dr. Alkins was to his tail, but ¥
say it is totally false.

Mr. BeNTLEY—Am I fo understand that Mr. Hodder used the probe with-
out looking what he was doing ?

Dr. HoppEr—No ; but I was not in the best position in which { conld
use if.

Mr. BextLEY—TI understood that the probe was used about a quarter of an
hour.

Dr, Hopper—I4t is simply false.

Dr. Hatrowerr—I wish to ask Dr. Widmer whether he has ever known,
in his military or civil practice, a case of fistula in perineo, treated by a
transverse incision.

Dr. Wiuer—No, Sir, I never have.

Dr. HoppER here stated, in answer to a question from Dr. Richardson, that
some of the hest nurses and servants in large hospitals were somewhat rough
in their manner. He also stated that students attending large hospitals in
Europe considered it a privilege to furnish their own instruments for cupping,
bleeding and tooth-drawing. He referred to the cupper in Guy’s Hospital,
who made a large salary by the fees he received from the students for teach-
ing them cupping. g

Dr. Prrprick, herve stated that he camo on the first day to give his testi-
mony, and being very weakly he had dropped down in a faiot while going
out. Ifhad been said that he was intoxicated, he wished to kuow fvrom Dr.
‘Widmer or Dr. Telfer if that was their opinion. He did nob wish to be tra-
duced by these trashy toadsiools. :

Mr. Bowes—I am not aware that gach a thing wag zaid.

Dr)PHizeriok.—It was said publicly, and I ask whether Dr. Telfer or Dr,
Widmer believe it was the effect of disease or the effect of drink.

. Dr. Boverr.—It was stated in the presence of the Sheriff that he was drunk,

Dr. Hatrowsrn,—1 was fold so by Mr. Gray.

Mr. Geay. I say most distinctly that it is false. T said, that it was suggest-
ed that Dr. Philbriek should leave the rcom that he might not disgrace the
TInstitution for it was helieved that he was not sober.

Dr. Harrowell —I beg lesve to call that gentleman to order. He ir ul
astudent of medicine! I wont say behiud a man’s back what I would notse
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Mr. BanTrEv—I would ask whether the incision referred to wasa transverze
or oblique incision, and what was its extent.

Dr. Hopper.—It was what we call a transverse incision in the perinewm,
the length of the incision might be two inches.

Mr. BeNTLEY--] was present on the occasion, and 1 did not think the incis-
ion was more than half an inch.

Dr. HoppErR—Are you a medical practitioner 2

Mr. BenTiey--1 am a medical student, and I am quite able to distinguish
between half an inch and two inches.

Dr. Hopper--1f it was only half an inch it was not half enough.

Mr. LEnxyon—Arte you aware of any patient having died under an operation
by Dr. Aikins ?

Dr. HoppEr—No--1 never saw a patient die under an operation in my life
unless in Guy’s Hospital in London, I am not aware of any patient having died
from hemorrhage in this Institution but even should a sscondary hemorrhage oce
~cur, it is no blame in the operator.

Dr. Pmrrsrick.—Did you not hear Dr. Aikins say that the only cases he
did not enter on his book were cases ol weakness where the patients required rest
and nourishment ?

Dr, Hopper.—1 did.

Dr. ParrisricE—Do you consider the Hospital a proper place for weak per-
sons, or that strength would likely be gathered there ?

Dr. HoppEr--Ithink that cases of that kind should no the admitted to the Hos-
pital at all, but occasionally such cases are admitted, because we have no Poor-
house here.

The Chairman said there was a House of Industry in town, and he requested
the medical gentlmen to understand that the funds of this Institution are not for
that purpose. He hoped in future the profession would send such cases to the
Poor House.

Dr. Hopper.—Occasonally the House of Industry has been so crowded thal
we could not get such patients admitted there.

Mr. LExnoN.—I wish you to name the student who showed Dr. Aikins the
passage into the urethra after he had been unable to find it.

Dr, HoppEr.—~I cannot give the name of the student from my own know=
ledge ; I merely heard that a student had pointed out the true passage.

Some further remarks here passed between Mr. Lennon Dr. Scott Dr. Phil-
Lrick and Dr. Hodder in regard to the operation for fistula already so frequently
alluded to, when

Dr, RrouarpsoN-—Asked whether Dr. Hodder thought the statements in the
letter of the 24th were truei?
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claimupon me, A great deal has been said to show error in practice, but error
will some times occur with the most experienced men. Every man must begin
to operate, but those are best qualified to begin who have seen operations per-
formed, and Dr. Aikins and Dr: Wright I must say have not had opportunities of
seeing 2 great many surgical operations performed. It cannot be expected that
in a small place like Toronto they can have had an opportunity of seeing a great
many operations,

Dr. Amxins—Can you prove that statement ¢

Dr. Beaumoent.—Dr, Wright has stated thathe was educated in Canada, you
I believe, were some time in Philadelphia and consequently may have seen more
than he has.

Dr. ArkINs.—When you make a statement against my professional ability. I
think yon ought to be able to substantiate every word you say.

Dr. BeaumonT.—1 was speaking about those best qualified to conduct operas
tions.

Dr. Amsws:—I state most distinctly that Drv Beaumont would lead any person
to infer that I have not had the means of learning my profession perfectly, and
therefore he ought to be able to substantiate this statement:

Dr. BeaumonT—I say you cannot have had an opportunity of seeing so large
a number of operations as many gentlemen have. Those gentlemen who have
been educated at home, and those who have spentsome halfdozen years in Hos-
pitels in New York must have had many advantages that gentlemen educated in
Toronto cannot have, and it would have been better that gentlemen not having
so large experience had been appointed as assistants to the Hospital staff. There
is a certain responsibility involved in taking part in operations which I should noy
desire to share, unless with persons whom I know to be in the habit of operating!
i should not greatly desire to assistin an operation performed either by Dr. Ai-
kins or by Dr. Wright. I should not desire to do so. Idid once assist Dr:
‘Wright in an operation but I don’t know why he should ask me rather than Dr-
Alkins to assist him.

Dr. WrieaT.—Do you know that I did not ask Dr. Alkins.

Dr. BEAUMONT, after some hesitation , said he did not know whether Dy, Ai-
kins had been asked or not.

Dr. WrieaT.—I did ask Dr. Aikins und Dr. Telfer too, and I asked you as
a matter of professional courtesy, as you were there at the time.

Dr. Beavyoyt.—I state again that I dolnot think that parties who have not
had much experience should be appointed to Hospitals. I think also that as
T and four of my colleagues have signed the letter to the Trustees, stating
that we consider the letter signed “Medical Student,” a tissue of falsehoods—
I think it is right that it should be made clearly known whether Dr. Aikins
and Dr. Wright deem the statements in the C'olonist correct and justifiable.

Mr. Bowes.—I wish first to have an answer from you to one ox two general
questions in regard to the general management of the Hogpital,
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Dr. Bravwont,~I have seen nothing that I do not consider ereditable to the
Institution, considering its resources. Everything that I have seen on the
part of Dr. Clarke, does him the highest credit. There is no man in the Hos-
pital that I wauld ask to assist me in operating in preferemce to Dr. Clarke.
Dr. Clarke is the mos: temperate man I ever met with. I have often taken a
glass of wine ia the Hospital with som» of ihe examining Board, but I do not
think that ever on such an oceasion. Dr. Olarke would take a glass of wine.
The general bearing of Dr. Clarkie has been such as to give the highest satis-
faction toall partie

Mr. Beyreey.—I
consulting with his

Dr. RICEARD30ON.—
at the very top of hi

Dr. Wipuer was
Hospital sin
in it ; some {a
coudacts it w

Dr. Beaumont if he considers his dignity wounded by
s Ailias and Wright?

vit for him. T assert Lhat Dr. Beaumont stands

n in Toronto

.Ihave hbeen connected with this
a vast variety of medical officers
ome vory bad indood 3 hut we have got one now who
aud cat efficiency. He has the greatest confi-
deace of all the to urivg the whole course of years that I have
observed the conduci of Dr. Clarks I aa bighly eatisfied with it. In respect
to atteotion. zeal, intearity and courtesy, he eannob be surpassed in any one
of these gnalities. [Cheers ]

Dr. CLarEE.~You are in the habit of visiting this Institation everyday ;
Did you ever see tae under the inflnence of liguor ?

Dr. Wipuer.—No, I declare most positively that I never did.

Mr. BayTLEY.—~Do the Trostees receive the fees of the students?

Mr. Bowrs.—We receive the fees of the students, and we are not able after
all to furnish brandy.

Mr. BENTLEY.—T wish the position of the students somewhat defined.~I
merely wish to say ithat the students pay their fees for the benefit of the in-
struction they expect to receive here.

Dr Herricw,— I have attended the Hospilal for about 12 years. Inmy ad-
mitting week I have beea always regular in attendance. It is customary for
the person receiving patients to attend them until they leave the Hospital.

The Doctor having made some remarks in regard to the course pursued in
King’s College in regard to clinical leetares, said, the receiving officer has
2 right to attend all the cases that arve admitted by him. I know of no case
where Dr. Clarke hag departed from hisduties. T have found him always im-
partial so far as I could judge ; Ihave never seen anything where there was
not the utmost attention. Until he was appointed, this Hospital was very bad-
ly arranged. I have had an opportunity of judging of Dr. Clarke’s ability as
a medical man and I think he would be a eredit to any hospital. T shounld say
that in a remote place like this, it iy extremely difficult to get a proper per-
son for such an institution. Ihave not known him show partiality to
any of the students of any school of medicine over the other.

Mr. Bowes.—1Is it customary for medical gentlemen to send a note o say
who they wish a patient put under.

Dr. HerRICK,—I understand that some of the medical gentlemen have done
€0, but I never did. As to the management of the Hospital, I may say that I
have been attending Hospitals for the last 30 years and I think I know as much of
Hospital practice as any man in Canada; and for the last 8 years,—I only speak
since then because the Hospital was not properly managed before—it is ag
well managed an Hospital now as any ever Isaw. Ihave been in Hospitals
in Dablin and Bdinburgh and other places, and I never saw an Hospital better
managed than this one has been for the last 8 years. Inever saw anything
wrong ‘with the nurses. Inever saw anything of cruelty, or anything but
the ufmost attention. So far aslam concerned I never,saw anything but re-
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claim upon me. A great deal has been said to show error in practice, but error
will some times eccur with the most experienced men. Every man must begin
to operate, but those are best qualified to begin who have seen operations pex-
formed, and Dr, Aikins and Dr. Wright I must say have not had opportunities of
seeing 2 great many surgical operations performed. It cannot be expected that
in a small place like Toronto they can have had an opportunity of seeing a great
many operations,

Dr. Aixins—0Can you prove that statement ¢

Dr. BeavmonT.—Dr. Wright has stated thathe was educated in Canada, you
1 believe, were some time in Philadelphia and consequently may have seen more
than he bhas,

Dr. Axrys—When you make a statement against my professional ability. I
think you ought to be able to substantiate every werd you say.

Dr. BeausmonT.—I was speaking about those best qualified to conduct opera=
tions.

Dr. Atsins.—I state most distinctly that D1y Beaumont would lead any person
to infer that I have not had the means of learning my profession perfectly, and
therefore he ought to be able to substantiate this statement.

Dr; BeauMoNT—L say you cannot have had an opportunity of seeing so large
a number of operations as many gentlemen have, Those gentlemen who have
been educated at home, and those who have spentsome halldozen years in Hos-
pitals in New York must have had many advantages that gentlemen educated in
Toronto cannot have, and it would have been better that gentlemen not having
so large experience had been appointed as assistants to the Hospital staff. There
is a certain responsibility invelved in taking part in operations which I should noy
desire to share, unless with persons whom I know to be in the habit of operating!
1 should not greatly desire to assist in an operation performed either by Dr. Ai-
kins or by Dr. Wright. I should not desire to do so. Idid once assist Dr:
Wright in an operation but I don’t know why he should ask me rather than Dr-
Aikins to asstst him.

Dr. WriGHT.—Do you know that I did not ask Dr. Aikins.

Dr. BeauMonT, after some hesitation ,said he did not know whether Dr. Ai-
kins had been asked or not.

Dr. WeienT.—I did ask Dr. Aikins and Dr. Telfer too, and I asked you as
a matter of professional courtesy, as you were there at the time.

Dr. BeauvvonT.—I state again that T do’not think that parties who have not
had much experience should be appointed to Hospitals. I thinkalso that as
T and four of my colleagues have signed the letter to the Trustees, stating
that we consider the letter signed “Medical Student,” a tissue of falsehoods—
I think it is right that it should be made clearly known whether Dr. Aiking
and Dr. Wright deem the statements in the Colonist correct and justifiable.

Mr. Bowses.—I wish first to have an answer from you to one or two general
questions in regard to the general management of the Hospital,
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Dr. Beavuont.—1I have seen nothing that I do not consider ereditable to the
Institution, considering its resources. Everything that I have seen on the
part of Dr. Clarke, does him the highest credit. There isno man in the Hos-
pital that I would ask to assist me in operating in preferenee to Dr. Clarke.
Dr. Clarke is the most temperate man T ever met with. I have often taken a
glass of wioe ia the Hospital with- som» of ihe examining Board, but T do not
think that ever on such aa occasion, Dr. Clarke woald take a glass of wine.
The general hearing of Dr. Clarke has been such as to give the highest satis-
faction toall partie:

Mr. BewrieY.—~I ask Dr. Beawmont if he considers his dignity wounded by
consulting with his cia‘es I ikins and Wright ?

Dr. Ricaarpsox.—I ass s him. T assert that Dr. Beaumont stands
at the very top of his p in Tovonto.

Dr. Wipier was n°xb counlaod, He said, I have been counected with this
Hospital siuca it was opened.  We have had a vast variety of medical officer s
in it ; some i1 Wl inded 3 hut we have got one now who
condacts it with g iency. He bas the greatest confi-
deace of all the medi e i
observed the couluc Dr. Clarke T am bighly satisfisd with it. In respect
to atteation, zeul, intesrity and courtesy, he eannot be surpassed in any one
of these gualities. [Cheers]

Dr. CLaREE.—You are in the habit of visiting this Institution everyday ;
Did you ever sce e uader the influence of liquor ?

Dr. Wrpuer.—No, I declare most positively that I never did.

Mr. BeysLeY.—Do the Trustees receive the fees of the students?

Mr, Bowes.—We receive the fees of the students, and we are not able after
all fo furnish brandy.

Mr. BENTLEY.—T wish the posi'ion of the students somewhat defined.—I
merely wish to say {hat the students pay their fees for the benefit of the in-
struction they expect to receive bere.

Dr Herrice.- 1 have attended the Hospital for about 12 years. Inmy ad-
mitting week I have been always regular in attendance. It is customary for
the perzon receiving patients to attend them until they leave the Hospital.

The Doctor having made some remarks in regard to the course pursued in
King’s College in regard to clinical Jectures, said, the receiving officer has
a right to attend all the eases that are admitted by him. Iknow of no case
where Dr. Clarke has departed from his duties. I have found him always im-
partial so far as I could judge; I have never seen anything where there was
not the utmost attention. Until he was appointed, this Hospital was very bad-
ly arranged. I have had an opportunity of judging of Dr. Clarke’s ability as
a medical man and I think he would be 2 eredit to any hospital. I should say
that in a remote place like this, it is extremely d:fficult to get a proper per-
son for such an institation. Ilhave not known him shew partiality to
any of the students of any school of medicine over the other.

Mr. Bowss.—Is it customary for medical gentlemen to send a note to say
who they wish a patient put under.

Dr. Herrrex.—X understand that some of the medical gentlemen have done
0, but ¥ never did. As to the management of the Hosp}tal, Imay say that I
havebeen attending Hospitals for the last 30 years and I think I know as much of
Hospital practice as any man in Canada; and for the last 8 years,~—I only speak
since then because the Hospital was not properly managed befgre—lt is ag
well managed an Hospital now as any ever Isaw. Ihave been in Hospitals
in Dablin and Edinburgh and other places, and I never saw an Hospital better
managed than this one has been for the last 8 years. Inever saw anything
wrong ‘with the nurses. Inever saw anything of cruelty, or anything but
the utmost attention. So far aslam concerned I never,saw anything bub re-

Dur tae whole course of years that I have
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spect and obedience on the part of Mrs Donnelly. Iknow Burns: I never saw
any particular roughness about him. I saw a man comein with his hat on,
Burns took his hat by the brim and said, every person here must have his hat
off. There was no ronghness that I could observe, He took the bat off and
told the patient that he should be uncovered ;.this was only & week ago.

Dr. Dixov.—Xhe case to which I referred occured more than six months

0.
ng. Bowns.—In the case of a person fainting from bleeding—What remedy
would you apply? .

Dr. Hernrcs. —1 would apply hartshorn, or I would take him into the open
air. It is customary to throw water upon the face, I would do so by puiting
my hand in the basin, and then sprinkling it with my fingers,—so—[Here
the Doctor suited the action to the word]. It would not be cruel to take a
patient by the arms and draw him out in the open air. 1 don’t kuoow that it
could be done otherwise. I would not consider it correct to leave him out in
very cold weather. There is no building like this that you can keep free from
vermin ; but I have never seen them more here than in ordinary cases. In
some of the Hospitals in the old country there is a bath room where such cases
would be sent, and their wearing clolbes would then be taken away from
them: But here there is no Hospital dvess, which there should be. Under the
gircumsiances I think itis as well managed as any Hospital can be. It is
kept as clean s such a building could he. I never saw auy of the beds, or
sheets, or blankets but what were ordinaxily clean. Tnever heard any obscene
language vsed by any person in this Institution, either by medical officers of
the fostitution, or by servauts in the Hospital. -

Mr. LExyon—ITo7e you %een up stairs in this Fospiial on more than one
oceasion this w 1% w'¢lack — the bour appointed?

Dr. BERRTCR—E have heen repeatedly np staics but I thought one o’clock
was the bour.

Mr. LExsox— With regard to this bleeding case, does Dr Herrick helieve
that if a paticnt is bled ro siocope, :hat water should be dashed in his face?

D+, Berrick—1t was your duty to have stopped him. ’

My, Lenxox—The patient came in bere to get reli: f. it was granted to
him by the Medical titicer. I was ordered by the officer to bleed him. He
got the relief he requived, and bad to go out in the middle of wint3r with his
clothes all wet.

Dr. Herr1cE—Was it not humanity in Burns to do what he could {o re-
Beve the man?

Dr. Rrcuarpgon—I would like to ask Dr. Herrick what he would think of
the qualification of & young man to bleed a patient—who would bleed a man
almost pulseless, and still keep up in an npright position.

Dr.Havrowsri— beg tosubmit that this is entirely out of order.—Dr.Her-
rick has been calledupon as the oldest Medical Man in the room and his
testimany is attempted to be impugned by a young gentleman who has not
the «lightest qualification to stand upon.

Dr. HerricE—I don’t think the young man got exactly fair play in this
bleeding case. There ought to be bleeding cups marked to the proper quan-
tity 4 oz. cups or 6 oz. cups or 10 oz.cups But withont these a young
man might take 16 ounces instead of 10.

Dr. Kicearpson—I don’t want to say one word to injure the young man.
¥ T havesaid anything to injure his character or his reputation I am sorry
for it and will take every means publicly to retract it.

Some little discussion took place between Dr. Cotter and Dr. Herrick in
regard to whether it was cruelty or not to throw the water, as Burng bad
done, and tben the Dr. made some allusion to the abolishing of the faculty of
Medicine from the University. He was determined, he said to resign his con-
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nection with the Horpital, but had been urged by Dr. Beaumont not to do so
until there was no chance of the Mcdical Sclool being again attached to the
University. But 1be very thing that he feared had occurred ; jeatousy bod
cowe into the Hospital. Ho hud determined, however, il saw bow
things would work to go on as before. He thought the Trustees had acted in
a very iwpartial wry, There is no bosp tal in J*‘ulopc hus vo many Medical
attendants as this Ho:plial ¥ mo~t of thew bave huve only four. Hc tad no

wish to injure either of the Schools, Oy iw contrary, e bis own -choul is
gone he did everything in his prover o s Tie s )

A

“hk ber D E ”nd\\' ight ca sleurs in the Uos 5
£ive sucu ve Truste ght o insst that they
Shad nover s Dr. Adkius or Dr.

Lc understood that Dr.Jlodder and
the winter inthe Hospital,

P-st winter, Dh. Bovell bas
other we are bound to lecture

1ven

De. HODDhRI Lave not
given clinic
to any but vas

Mr. BextL
their fees w + p.acure of t‘he Hogp
any particiler cfficer, He bad wudersi od thai the studert
8eg the practice of all the medical goullen e, and not of any cue ju purticu-
jar, and he wzanted to knew wheiber the Tru&.tuss in cdemandicg a fee have
not the idea thas the studentg should have the benefit of insirociion from all
the roedical wifizers. "Lhe hour fur students is fxed ot noon daily throughout
the year,and tie Lectures whlc‘a they attend are repulated so 53 to eoable
them to be hers at that hovr ftie medieal officers do not attend ab that
particular hour, t G very evident, caonot delive any advantage
from their instructions,

Mr. Bowss tho
had oinly aclaim ¢
the patients. i w
Dr. Beataront—

2

denis paid
'. oun]y 1o gee the ‘r;um«, uf
i fee tu

the rule was concerned, the Trustees
! oofficer for the week that he admitied
ceted vhas i shoald be presest b noon.

iv would be perfecily momsirous i supprse that all
the wmedical v siouid come to this Hospital every day at coon to visib
one or two patients. it would be & tax unoi their tiw= which haif the med-
ical men could notgive He could nut duso, and would be oovliged o resign
if the Trustees required it.

Sume little conversation here ensued iniregard to the practice of the Hos-
pital

Dr, HavroweLL thought that if there were rules foritho guidauce of the
wmedical geotlemee iu regard to theic atrendance, they ought to be carried out.
Que rulg 18 that thoy attend ab 12 o’clock. He would like to sk Dr. Wright
whether he had always otteudad at thaj hour.

Dr. Wrigar ~Not always.

Dr. Granre ~-If the Trustzes could oot manage 8o a3 wo geb toc medical offi~
cers to attend at 12 o’closk it waz impossible for the studenis to derive auy
beoefis ab all from eswing to the Hoapital, He begged leave to say thatin
the old conatry bhis i3 p,\ru,ula.rly aitended to. Ha had seen four modical
gantlemen attend reguiaiy all ab ooz time, and the sbtudents have jusiice
duno them. Her¢in wass evideas tbqtjvwhce was not done the sindeuts and
they cannot reap the advaitige whish ths Hospital holds cot as a school of
practice. Here thers wero 5wo schsols of mediciue ia wiich they were
training young men to go abroad throagh she geeat pruvinee to plact.\se as
wedical men. How wece they traiuing them aud sending thewm vuf bo pur-
sue their profession? By giviog them very madzqua,ta ideas of their busi-
ness. Unlesa the Trustees vould wanage affairs in such o way that the sto-
denta can reap this benefit, they were domg & gros iojustice to the publis
2t large 83 woll 83 to the students.

%
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Dr. BoveLy was next requested to give evidence. He said he would sim-
ply make afew statements whichthe Secretary need not detain the mesting
by writing out, ashe would furnish a copy of it after the examination was
over. Ihave read the letter in the Colonist, and 1 have signed a letter with
my co)lesgues, which I think a_sufficient answer to the falsehoods contained
in thatletter. Froro theturn things have takewo in this investigation I feel
B0 ashamed of the position which I occupy that I had resolved absolutely to
refuse to answer any question at all. The characters of individoals have
been most unaparingly assailed, and the parties have not been upon oath
who made the charges, I think it would bave been far better if the Trus-
tees had examined those persons privately or called upon the government
to examine them b{ commission. The way -some of ihe questions had been
put was most insulting, and characters ofindividuals had been wost wan-
tonly asailed, and pone of the parlies upon osth. i

The CrAIRMAN—TYou are aware that notice was given to all the parties
that it was ooly voluntary on their patt to answer any question at all. The
officers of this Institution have been sssailed by the studenis of a medical
gehool in this city, and the Trustees thoughtit was absolutely necessary,
believing as they did, that there was nob a particle of foundation, much less
of tiah, inthe siate 15 made by that siudent—to put a stop te this vici-

notice, et i m & vicious mind no doubt, by taking testimony
who came forward to give testimony in re-
G dogs o tution, The management of thiz Ipatitu-
tion Lias been assailed.  You have beew attending this Iuatitution, and as
you have bad the kiudness to-come forward, we would feel much obli-
ged to you for your opinion. .
~ Dr. BoverL.—I have been connected with the Hespital for over 15 years.
T wae eight veuss as o student in London and Dublin. . The cnlyfault I can
find to thig Hospital icirs construstion. I havehad an opportunity of visiting
wapy Hospitals' in the United States, and I think it will bear comparison -
with auy of them with the iien of the PLii Lia Hospital, I koow
of no ooy better conducted. d 2 grery way as the ong
in Dublis, and it will bear « one that I hove seen unlues
in reguid to its sonstruction. refer-of course to the behaviour of the nurses
and the persors attached to it. Formerly I believe, and krow i, aud have
heatd if, that bhe purses in this Institution were not ot 80 good a class as they
are novr, and have beea piape. Dr. Glarke has been convected with it Asa
matter of opinion I mway okject to some of the details of managemens; for in-
stance, i do poh think ihe diet 1o be the very best (hatcan be devised. 1f
looks a5 if drawn up by a fresh haud. ~“Noiwitbstanding the epivion of Dr.
Widmer, I do otjest most sirongly to the trusiees withholding the use ot bran-
dy, for ihis 5'mple reasop, that aléthough the whiskey supplicd may be guod, it
has not—snd I-speak from 8ctual experience—in cases of typbus fever, the
astringent propertsés of bréndy. T have given patients whiskey and they bave
rejected it by véwiting it. T.bave then seut out and purchased brandy at my
own expense. I do not'statethis simply on my own authority. Do Todd, of
King’s College, bas lately called attention to'the peculiar valve of brandy in
* cases of tyhpus fever. I believe there is another thing I bave felt the want of viz
leecber, 1 think therefore that the medical practitioner should beallowed to
order anything which he considers absolutely essential to the bencfit of, the
patients: I-have no hesitation in seying that I believe Dr. Clarke to beone of
the very best house surgeons that ever attended an Hospital avy where, Ido
not except London ‘'or Dublin or any other place where 1 have been’ He has
a greater awmount of duty to do here as house surgeon thau any resident sur-
geon I bave beeu acquamted with, I am quite prepared to say thatT never
88w Dr: Clarke drunk in this Institution. I am prepared to show the malignity
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of the statement by saying that during the prevalencs of cholers last summer
I urged Dr. Olarke to take s little brandy as a preventative, but he could not
be prevailed upon to do o, and duriag the whole time, from the first opening
of the cholera sheds Dr. Clarke was incessantin his attcndanea ab the sheds.
Ofle day indeed, after pressing upon him to take a little braady, he did s
when his siomach was empty, and the consequence was thal he suffered very
severe stimulus, I said to him you now see she evil of teking stimulus with-
out takiog proper food. I know he suffers severly from neuralgia. I bave
giver him opium and morphine for this affection, and I have seen this pro-
duce effects similar to intoxication. Itis possible the person who said thab
he was intoxicated msy have seen him while suffering from this stimulas.
But there is a difference bstween bstng stimalated asd being iutoxicated.

. I bave known Dr. Clarke for seven years, and I have never sesn him intoxi-
cated. atthough I have frequently seen him under stimulus. {t was azid by
Dr, Wright, I uaderstaud, that the effects of opium were sedative, but this al«
thouga 1t might have been said, I do not think correct.

Dr. WeigaT.—I uftered no such words.

Dr. BoviLL.—T was uader the impression that you had eaidso, 1fIhave
stated anything wrong, I retract it. :

Dre. WrigaT.—I disclaim eatirely having nsed words to lead to that im-
pression. 1 stated that morphia, one of the preparations of opium, was seda~
tive ia its first etfects, When D¢ Cotter referred to the Turksas using it, T
stated that the Turks used solid opium and not morphia.

Dr.. BoveLL.—I state distinetly that I have seen Dr. Clarke from the effects
of opium intozicated. I bave also given him morpuaia with the same effect.

" Ihave known Dr. Clarke seven years and I have never scen him istoxicated.

Mr. Linyox here said that he was not aware that Dr. Clarke bad suffered
from that complaint ; he had seen bim stimulated, and considered it was from
liquor, but 1t might b from soms other cautse. If he had been misledin any
way by appearance, he begged toretract any statement he had made in re~

- gard to his being intoxicated. .

Dr. HiLLOwELL.—A. deliberate statement was made that Dr. Clarke was
intoxicated. .

Mr. Lexyoy.—I hope you will accept the apology I have given for the
statements I made in relation to that: I am sorry that I should have made
such & statement.

b Dr; HavLvowstt moved that that part of the evidence given by Mr. Lennon
8 exXpuaged. :

M, BoDWEs, thought Mr. Lennon had acted in a straightforward manner.

They might make of their own evidence what they pleased, but they of course

had no control over the reporters’ notes.

Dr. BoveLL resumed,~X think Mrs. Donnelly is a very trustwerthy nurse:
I have never known the slightest cruelty oo her part: The reverse of this is
the case, for on account of her kindness the children are generally given to her
care. As regards the lice referred to, I have seen lice in every Hospital in the
world, (hear, hear, and laughter,) that is to say wherever Ihave been. The
bed clothes are generally clean, I have never seen the Hospital in a filthy state
owing to the neglect of the nurses. The nurses here bave occasionally com-
mitted a fault ag they do in'other places. I find the same degree of cleauliness
a3 in any other hospital. The building is old and very shabby, and the linen
i3 not new, but the Hospital is asclean and orderly as it can be. I feel some
delicacy inspeaking of Burns;because I recommeaded Burns to this Instituiion,
1 fouad Dr. Clarke in & didemma one morning when I came here. ILkuew
Burns to be 2 civil, orderly, steady man, and I said to Dr. Clarke if you can
get hold of such a man, an' }d soldier accustomed to obey orders he would
be your very man. Burnswas at that time in the Lunatic Asylum, Dr.Clarke
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and T went to his housoand spoke to him, and the reason he did not oome
here the first day was, that he had to goto the Asylum for some purpose.

. He took the situation because it was nearer to his owa honse. I was not
aware thas he was discharged from the Luuoatic Asylum, but upderstood that
he came from thab Institution to the Hospital, becanse be preferred it. So
for as I have seen him he has been an orderly, and well belaved man. -
tients sometimes come in here very rudely I bave seen Burns frequently
take their hats off after telling them to duso, and even knockiug them off when
they would not attend. As an officer he is strict and attentive to his duty.
T have no knowledge of the transaction that took place for which he was
brought up before the police magisirate. I believe Buros to he incapable of an
act of cruelty from what Thave seen of him hothbefore he came here and after.
As regards the throwing of the water I would huve talen the first thing thak
came to hand, and thrown it myself, T don’t know that any person bas left
the Institution, for want of attention. Occasioually in going round the Hos-
pital a patient has asked relief, bat, on tookiug at the ticket and seeing
that the patient was under the care of another, [ have pereptorily refused
it. The ouly ease of shat kiad that cceurs to me is, that of Grace Sage. One
day Dr. Clarke said Dere is one of Dr. Aikin- patients who has not been pre-
seribed for, and he asked me 2s a favor, to give her someihing. Woen [
looked at the card and saw that it was Dr. Aikias’s patiens, I said o, Dr.
Clarke, I cannot do it. He said she is suffering so much that I wish you to
Jouk at her. I then looked at her, and prescribed f T her. 1do not enter all
my cases myself, Ihavebeen endeavouring to induce the students to act as
clinieal clerks. Fhe books of the Hospital are kept by Dr. Clake. Ire-
member the case ot syphillitic disease of the gkin. The gzirl was taken in under
wy own charge aud did not come in in Dr. Weight’s week. She was the first
patient I took in that week. B

Mr. Geay said, taab it was impossible he conld have been mistaken in
regard to the weel,

Mr. Lemvox said, that that patient came in while he was in the Hospital,
and he ‘did know that while he was ia the Hespital that day Dr. bevell
was not i it. although he might have cows after.

Dr. Clarke here stated that it was Dr. Telfer’s week. He entered all
the names of the patizuis as they were udmined, and thab pe iens was ad-
mitted in Dr, Telfer’s week, as he had before stated. e wadea weekly
report of the pi s Lo the Crustees, acd aisc an annual repoit of the whole
affawr of the L mibutioa.

The UBATsMAX — - hen i appears that it wes notin Dr. Wiignt’a week at all.

Dr. Bovern— Mo, nor D, Bovell’s either. It was a very iusolent vhing
in a young max 1o make such a charge. The mao bthat would say tuat
the dates of the books bad h-ex changed, is just the very man wnat
would do it.

Mr Geay here stated that he had mo wiéh to i«pracir the correctness of
the dutes, dbus they did pot coincide with his knowledge of facts.

Dr. Bover, after -ome remarks, resuged. I buve mver tken upon
any occasion a patientunder my care who had come recommesd € to any
other medical gentlemar: I have never seed any partial ty on the part of any
of the med:cal gentlemen. The only preference T'make Is when I require the

services of a clinical cluss.  The studints gen-
erally attend my clini

¢u I have Lo ozeasion to
do so. I have gpiven fuwer 3 -, ior 1his
reasvn, I have hod i
tected ip my rianaer t
of Tiinity College. Cumis
they were crowded out by the stud

ents of Trinity Uollege have sald that
g of Dr. Rolph's school, but I invaria-
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bly told them I could not help it, I could make no difference. ¥ also encou-
rage all the studeats to examine the patients : they do not do this enough, I
have ordered baths, and I believe they have been given. I do not think the
bath room sufficient, but in extreme cases patients can can get a bath. I
have never heard obscene language used by any officer of the Institution.
There was a remark mude caleulated to injure Mrs. Dondelly, “That T wi
be the death of you.” I have heard the same remark wade by her tweniy
timdes. She is the very person to make such a remark, and just the last person
to do it.

Dr. AINS.—I want to make a remark in regard to Grace Sage. Iamnot
aware whether she was entered upoa my book, bt I know that from the day
Grace Sage came in, I preseribed for her. She had no chest affeé¢tion when
she came in; That developed itself subsequently. Several of the students
can testify that they saw me preseribe for Grace Sage.

Dr: CLarsr.—The patient is under my owa treatment, Ihave atiended o
the case ever since you neglected her:

Dr. Aixins—I state that that gir’s gums were tender.from the effects of
mercury under which I put her.

Dr. CLarxs.—Isay this girl is under my care, and that she was pub under
mercury by me under Dr. Bovell’s advice.

Dr. Amins.—I say that the very day Grace Sage came in, I preseribed for
her, aud have done so subsequently. Tfwas too bad (o say that because this
cetse may not have been entered on my book that therefore she had been ne-
glected.

Dr. CLargE—Did you 1ot say that you did not know what was the matter
with her?

Dr. Amgins.—No, I did not. But I said I wondered why the pain should
continue so obstinately after she came under the ivfluence of wercury, Ire-
collect orderiog for her Todide of Potassium and bitter infusion on the very
day of her admission, and afier ib n#n the chest came ov, pleural friciion
developed itself, and then I put her nuder mercury until her gums beeame
tender.

Dr. TELFER was asked to give bis testimony, which he did at some length.
He said, ! have every confidence in Dr. Clarke as a bouse Surgeon. TIbave
Deen o practising surgeon for from thirty io forty years. I have beca thirty-
one years in Cauuda. I have bad opportunitics of judging of the munagement
of the Hospital generally, and I have never hal occasion fo find fau ¢ with
its cleanlicess. The nurses were always very stitentive. Mrs. Doanelly ia
quick and more hasty than other people may be,: but Inever thought she was
uukivd. I never saw anyihing in her conduct which I could characterize ag
inhumane. So far o my observation goes, she :5 & good nurse. | never saw
her incapable of discharging her duty through the inflpesce of liguor. I nee
ver suspected it I never saw anything in the Hospital tbat I could disap-
prove of. I haveszen nothing like moral pollution in the Iustitution, the con-
irary was the fact,for when persons c.me here, they go away much better than
they come in, 8o that as a reformatory Institution it is better than many other
places I have seen. No case of neglect of the medical officers has ever come
under my notice. I know Burns. I never saw any cruelty on bis part.
With regard to the patieut that was bled, there was nothing cruel ia throwing
the water in bis face. I think it was just the treatment that medical geatlemen
adopt. It wasnot cruelty to drag him out to the verandah ¢ven onacold
duy. Ihave never found at any time Dr. Clarke absent frow bis post, or in-
capable of discharging bis duty. He is particularly attentive to bis duty.
It would he difficalt t0 get one 10 fulfil the duties as well ag be does. He
has a very responsible situation, for if the medical men are not present he
must necessorily act, and it requires & person of intelligence to act in such
Cangh.
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Dr. HatLowsrn—Do you think the letter which has given rise to this in-
vestigation is excessively discredifable to the source from which it originated

Dr. Tarrer—Of course I do. My evidence goes to szy so. It is extremely.
delicate to judge of any medical man, I think Iwould refrain from making
such remarks. Dr: Aikins was accused in that case of_ampu’tatlon. Ido not
think that accusation wasat ail handsome to Dr. Aikins, for Dr. Beaumont
and himselt knew thatthey had made 23 bad stumps as Dr. Aikins. That case
was attended with very great difficulty. The man was badly bruised and
the muscles were much lacerated. The stumwp was as good a one ag could
be made under the circumstances. I was consulted in reference to it and if any
blame is to he attached, I will share it. I have known worse cases in the
Hospital under the eperation of Dr. Hodder.

Dr. Hopper—What case was that? o

Dr Amxins—Did you ever hear of any case of malpractice in this Hos-
vital, and whose case wasit? . .

" Dr. TeLrer—I have.but I think that no medical man has & right to prejudge-
another. In the case of the amputation, I was as much to he blamed as you. I
teally don’t think it right to answer any such question.

Dr. Aixins—Very true—Dr. Telfer, but my professional character has been
assailed here, and therefore T have a right to insist upon an answer to my
question. Have you seen a case under cne of the medical officers of this
hospital which was pronounced double pneumonia, when it was & case of
bydrathorax on_each side.

Dr. TeLrer—T have.

Dr. Areizs—What was the name of the Medical Officer?

Dr. TELFER— Dr, Hodder.

De{Hobpsr, and several others—nawe, name, zame the case.

Dr. Aremvs—I don’t know the name but I know the facts.
Dr. Telfer that this was a case——

Dr. Honper—DBefore Dr. Aikins proceeds further, he must produce the
name, or he must sit down.

Dr. Arxmns—I will not sit down.

Dr. Hopper—Then produce the name of the patient.

Dr. Terrer—I recollect the case very we'l.” A very uncommon operation
wag performed. Water was drawn from the patient’s chest by Dr. Hodder.

Dr.Hooper—I wishto cut this investigation short as possible and to give the
lie direct to the insinuations made by tbat man (pointing rather significantly
to Dr. Aiking.) [ ehall show you by my hooks that the whole statement
is false,

Dr. Axmvs—1I asked Dr. Telfer if he knew of a case stated by the medical
man to be double pneumonia, when it was a case of hydrathorsy. T shall ack
the same question of Dr. Wright. Do you, Dr. Wright know of a case of
hydrathorax treated by Dr. Hodder as double pneumonia?

Dr. WrreaT—-T objected last night to going info any inquiry of this sort,but
if it was tound necessary thatan iovestigntion of this kiod should be

Are you aware,

made
that it should not be done in this public manner. But a cher hus beeﬂ’
made publicly agaiust Dr. Aikios ond in defence of himself h beought
forwurd this case. I do remember somewhat of t

circumstinoes that oc-
vof Dy, Beaumonts
Iier said, gentlersen as

curred that day. There was a consultation on a
on the same day and atber seei g that patient De.
you are here, will you go in and see a caze of double pocumonia in the ad-
Joining room. Several of us went in sud as the examination proceeded
Dr Widmer threw up his spectacles over ais hrow and said, “what are you
going to do Dr. Hodder, are you going %o 1ap bim?’ I am coufident that Dr.
Hodder said it was a case of double pueumonis, of this I am positively cer«

tain and I make the statement with all due deliberation,
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Dr. HoppEr—1Itis possible that some othor case was confounded with that
one. But here was black and white for it. 1'he Dr. heve handed up his
book to show tha the case was entered hydrathorax, and not double preu-
emig and said that that wesa devilish deal better than sny mere recollectinn
of what took place.

Dr. WrieaT~I care notning for such rewmarks. My veracity is gquite as
good as that of any other man. I made the statement with alt due delibers-
tion. ¥ do not wish to impute motives, but Ide zay that you treated Dr.
Aikios in & most ungentlemanly way,

The book wag here handed to Dr. Teifer us evilencs rnat he waa wrong in
his impression. .

Dr. TeLrsr examined the book, and said the casn certainly is entered as
hydrathoraz, but the treatmenl prescribed is the treatment for preumonia,
consequently the diffiouity is noiremoved.

This caused alittle excltement, and the book was handed to the chairman
for examination, but no remarks were made.

Dr, WriGHT said, that if Dr. Hodder was mistaken for a day ortwo, as 1w
the disease, ha i3 not tae first tha ezn misteken. But his fiem convie-
tion was, that at the time these statemonis were made, Dr. Hodder had not
the case entered in his book. This wa3 his firm conviction cn the sfatement
of the students.

Dr. Hoppee —All that he would eay was thas that statement wag totally
false. He conld call 8 number of stadentsto say that all his 22808 were ea-
tered in his book the day they were admiited,

Dr. Bovert here said in answerso Dr. Aikins tbat he was ecertain that
Dr. Hodder stated ab the time that it was a case of double pneumonia,

A learned discussion here eveued betwecn Dr. Bovell and Dr. Wright as
to the appesrance of the lungs in & poat mortem exsmination, which toolt
place on the same patien,

Dr. Amgmns hera called wie attention of Dr. Telfer to a case of amputation
of the thigh, in which an immense quantity of blood wes logt by the artery
not being properly compressed.

Dr. Trrrer did not remember the case.

Dr. WriaHT said in reply to Dz, Aikios, that Dr. Widmer had charge of the
tournequet in that case.

Dr. VeLrEr considered thai the fack of Dr. Wilmer heaving applied the
tournequet was sufficient precanti e, that it was cerrect.

Dr. Amigs—D» you, Dr. Wrighs, reinember secing Dr. Hodder operating
upon the patient 2 And do you consider it the doty of the operating sur-
geon before he planges the kaife into thelimb to ses that the tournequet is
progerly applied. .

Dr. Waiesr—I did see Dr. Hodder operating, and aithough the tournegnet
was applied by vo less a personage than Dr. Widmer, it still wes the duty
of the o%eratmg surgeou U6 see that the cireulstion was stopped.

Dr. BoveLr explained. He saw the oy was put upon the table in a very
weak condition. Dr, Widmer avplied the tournequet, He tursed tothe old
man atthe time and said you ave » littte Vo much to the auter side. But it
was not changed and ke therefore put s thumb on the artery to pravent the
blood flowing. He bad asen the za.av thing bappen under the very best sur-
geons. Theboy was cxtremely thio, had it oceurred o a strong man the losg
would have been lesysevere.

Dr. Arxizs=~I am wuch obligea to Dr. Bovell for his explanatiou becau se
it bas beea stated hero that I am too youug v attend tosuch an Xostitution
ag this. But bereu case haus occured to/Dr. Widmer himeelf. If such a thivy
hed happenad with me the most serious ¢harges would have been brought
egainst me of incapacity. .

Dr, RicsrpsoN did mpob well see the connection between the
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cases, If Dr. Aikins would poini out that cosnexion he would
be much gratified. . .

Dr. Amisg—1{ you don’t mow see through the matter a repetitioa oi it
wouid nos brighten vour perception. .

Dr. Armivs asked Dr. Bovell if he did net think the loss of blood in that
case alluded to, was was likely to issue in death. )

Dr. BoveLn—Of course, it was a very bad thing. The bleeding was
very unfavourable to his condition.

Dr. Arrins—And the boy did die ?

Dr. BoverL—Yes ? '

Dr. Atkins-—And his death was hastened by the loss of blood ¢

No reply. . S

Dr. Arxins said he would never have thought of bringing these things for-
ward, but he had been seriousty attacked and he considered it necessary to de-
fend himself. He wounld appeal to Dr. Clarke if the first perineal fistula case
cured in the Hospital had not been cured by bim (Dr. Aikins) he would prac-
tice medicine and Surgery as he pleased, his reputation depended upon his doing
it property, and he would endeavour to find the urethera if he looked for it.

Here some remarks were made by Dr. Scott in reference to what Dr. Lizars,
of Edinbuigh, had said with regard o the medical facuity of Canada, in alluding
10 a case of Dr, Rolph’s, and a good deal of practical professional acrimony fol-
lowed.

Dr. Arxins—Dr. Olarke stated to me over and over again that that perineal
cas2 of which so much has been said, wes the first that went out cured, since he
came to the Hos)ital,

Dr. Crarge—I conld not have said so, but until lately there was never any
record of the proceedings of the Hospital, and I stated that was the first upon
the record, but as to its being the first I could not have said so. Itis not be ex-
pected that I can remember all the case.

Dr. Amkins—Is a surgeon compelled in any operation to follow the rule in
regard to any case that he may find laid down in books?

Dr. Terrer-—No, certainly not.

Dr, Aixins—I ask that question because it was stated by Dr. Hodder, and I
cousider what he says of no importance : while I consider the statements of Dr.
Hallowell of 1o importance ; it was said by Dr. Hodder that I wade an oblique
or transverse incisiou in an operation, when I should have made it perpendicular.

Dr. TELFER.—I certainly would not judge my neighbours in regard to their
mode of perfurming:

De. Aixins.—Do you Dr. Wright remember being presentat an operation on a
little festula patient Jesse Nunn.

Dr. WrieHT ~1 remember being presentand [ know several medical gentlemen
were present: An attempt was made to introduce the catheter into his bladder.

Dr.—AIKINS —Was not every courtesy shown to Dr. Hodder in that case of
Jesse Nunn?

Dr. WrienT —My present recollection is that Dr. Hodder was present at the
cowmencement of the operwtion in this case although he has said to the contrary
—and that he assisted by his adviee at the operation, and when Dr. Aiking had
sought for the passage in the usual way making the usval incision, Dr. Hodder
thought he saw the end of the urethra, and came round and took Dr.Aikins’s chair
between the boy’s legs and made repeated and persevering efforts to pass not on-
Iy the probe but the catheter into the bladder.—Not only so, but he showed a
good deal of anxiety to suceeed, anda willingness to render assistance.

Me. LENNON.--M.Y firm conviction is, that Dr. Hodder was treated with every
coartesy. He did not leave the impression on the mind of any person present,
which he now states, that he was not treated with courtesy by Dr. Aikins, :

Dr.HoppER.—The expression I made use of was, that Dr;Aikins appeared dis.
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inclined to take my suggestions: Idid not accnse Dr. Aikins of cruelty innot
finding the urethra, but after failing two or three times it became his duty as &
young man to ask the advice of some of the senior medical gentlemen. 1t was
very true the boy, was under the influence of chloroform, and was therefore not
80 susceptible of any pain. Ido notmean (o suy shat he tertured the boy but

certainly he was subjected to repeated operationa, ’

In reply to Dr. Aikins, Dr. Wright said, my impression is that instead of
being censured for that case, you are eatitled the highest credit for the pa-
tience and perseverance you used upon the occasion.

Dr. TELFER thought this case was a difficult one. He did not thiak there
was anything wrong in the management of it.

Dr. WrieET.—In reply to Dr. Aiking said—there is no doubt that you found
the urethra yourself.

Mr. LExxoxN.—I was present at the time, and assert that Dr. Aikin, had
found the urethera himself,

De. WricaT.—I state again that you deserved the greatest credit for the
gkill, the patience and perseveraoce manifested on this oocasion. Ihave seen
the boy siuce the operation,~—the wouund iz nearly healed.

Dr. HopperR—I merely said, if any charge of cruelty existed, it was in not
consulting a senior officer. It was bis buuuden duty to ask for the advice of
some of the senior medical officers, Dr. B anwont, Dr. Widner, Dr Telfer, or
Dr. Hodder, yet pone of us were consulted. I merely wish to say that if any
cruelty could he attached to Dr. Aikins in this case, it was in consequence of
his not consulting the seanior officers.

Dr. AIEINS.— So far ag this is from being the case that I cut deeper than 1
would have done, because Dr. Hodder suggesied I should do so. But the con-
tinual oosing of the blood caused delay in the « peration ; and it was only by
proceeding ‘most cautiously, and cutting most carelully, not more than the
sizteenth of an inch ata time and then wiping the blood and sponging it away
and then proceeding & litile farther, that I succeeded.

Dr. Hobper-—1 gract you succeeded in your cperation.

Mr Bowes.—Dr. Aikins, Dr. Hodder, and aii the professional gentlemen
bave given us a notice of all they have adin this Institution? Now, for
the benefit of the public, I ask how muuy ¥ have killed ?

Io regard to the amputation cuse, Dr. Teifer, said. he bad been consulted
in regard to that case by Dr. Aikins, and concurred with him in the opiaion
that it would be better to cut into the parts below the koee bruised, though
they were, than expose the man to the severe shock of cutting into the thigh,
and rhe risk of immediate death,

This #0 far civ-cd the Medical 1a gation.
= Mr. Frrzegralp cousidered it ouly an act of common justice to Mrs. Don-
nelly to say that 4 more aféevtive nuise there nevey was in any Hospital,
She was rough a little, but she was attentive and kind, He had seen Dr.
Clarke every day for two wontis ab o time, god oad scen bim frequently
during the iast seven ¥ears, aud had neves seeu him under the influence of
liquor,

Dr. Scorr expressed hisg entire sat
he wished 10 detain the Trusiers for
£Or Were very sbroug. peraags svinek
gome of it. ke had ce en bo very obecens lapguage
was used Uy one - TsEcica O Winon towards a female
patiens and be belier=d ihere wero wwo petsouns Delory therm ruady 1o testify
to that. R

. WiLtiax HEWAT, a young man, was bere brought forward to prove thikb
Dr, Wrighs bad used usseenyy :whguaze in ihe surgery, in ihe presicce

of Dr. Clarke. The youug lad was comEeUed to pollute his own mouih, and

o with moesi of tbe points, But
time. The charges in the let-
apiic 10 show occasion for
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tha ears of the audience,by repeating some expressions he said he overheard D'r.
Wright use when in conversation with Dr. Clarke,---he being Dr. Bovell’s
clinzcal clerk, was io the little room off the surgery. .

Some of the servants of the Inssitution were hora examined.

Dr. WricHT was asked by Mr. Bowes whether he would sign the let-
ter which the other medical gentlemen had seus 1o the trustees. He replied
in tho negative; as he had already stated iv "is evidence thas he bad seen
improprieties in regard to both Mre. Donneily and the orderly, Burns. He
did not endorse the letser signed Medical Studeat, buk ue would state most 413-
tinetly that having givea his opinion as he had dove he could nut stuitify him-
self Oy signing thai letler, As far as the statement of moral pollution was
concetned he would give his lestimony in favor of the trust.

Mr. Bowes—As 2 Trusteo he should uo more sit at t:at Bo;_].rd and havegen-
tlemen endorsing letters of taat kind againstthe Institution of which he
was a Trustee. He would resign at once, unless the medical officers ware able
to say they disapprove of that letéer. .

Dr. Hopper seid he believed that the whole of the statements in the letter
had beea satwsfactorily refuted, and five at least of the mediral officers hav-
sigaed the letter, [fthe testimouy which has been offered did not remove the
impression eontained in the letter sivned  Medical Student,” they Were pre-
pared to resign with the trust. . .

T .. WRIGHT said. 80 far a3 he was concerned as an individual, after hav-
iog stated What he did state in regaid to Burns it would be stultifyiog himself
to ign that Letter, after haviny suid thas Mrs. Donneliy did whai she did, and
said what she said, in regard to the colored man, Jackson, he could not sign
that letier, at the sametime he expressed his disapprobstion of certain parts
of shat letter as strongly as any one of them could do.

D¢ HALLOWELL then said ¢hat he had been sccuscd of taking an undu-
ly promivens part in the proceedings of these three duys. 'The part he had
takea had been dictated by seversl reasous : firew, hw had been accused
gravely, by several students, of having been the writer of the lolter, signed
“Veritas” He begged leave most distinctly and most pusitvely to deny
that he had auy hand, direcily or indirectly, n that production. The mo-
tives, that iuvduced him to take a prominent part in the proceedings were
three-fuld—as acitizen,as a medicul man,andasa colleague of two of the gen-
tlemen wheee characters have been a-sailed throngh a newspaper communi-
cativn signed < Medical Student,’ he fels ithis duty to take part in the in-
vesbigation. Notwithstandiag the very flattering amount of testimony given
by tae learned gentlemen who had preceded hi o, he trusted that the weight
of his lestimony, however humble, would be received in behalf of his friend
Dr. Clarke. Although oou av officer of the institution, he had some expe-
rience t bogpital practice, not only on this coptinent, but on the continent
of Burope, znd in all his experience he would say that a mwore efficient house
surgeou vhan Dr. Ularke he had never seen. With regard to his bearing
t0wWards hiwself personally, it was irrelevant to speak ; but with regard to
his bearing lowards the patients, with regard to his medical efficiency,
wiih regard to uis moral qualificatioas, 8o far as they enable thim to dis-
churgs s duny a8 a yurgeou to this pubiic institusion; a superior to Dr.Clarke
couid not be found on this eontineut. Whils giving this humble testimony
ia fagour of Dr. Clarke, he would say that from his experience in a mili-
tary hospital—huviog had the exclusive charge of one for neariy two years
—that he considered the military plan the only cae for keeping the patients
in proper subjection, und therefore it was that he justified the conduct of
Buros. He had never seen anything in him to blame, and considered that he

bad conducted himself in a most respectful raanner to all connected with
the instiiution.
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Dr, PHILLBRIOK, gave testimony in favor of the mansgement of the Hos-
pital and particulary in regard to the efficiency and attention of Dr. Clarke
He referrad also to the case with which his name was associated.

Dr. HoppERr here rose to say if anything was necessary to show that the ma-
lignantattack made upon the hospital had signally failed, it wonld be the fact that
a bribe was offeied to get a man to come here to substantiate some of the state-
ments made, [Name—name ! ] The name of the man to whomi the bribe was
offered is Edward Stewart, formerly an orderly ia this hospital.

Dr. Correr here made some remarks in reference to his acquaintance with
Dr. Clarke, and passed a high eulogium on the Doctor for his skill and uuremiti~
ing attention to the hospital, :

Epwarp STEWART, a brusque-looking man, stated that two students called
upon him to know if he could speak to some things connected with the hospitel.
He told them that be had his work to attend to, and if he went away his men
would be idle. They said they would pay him for whatever loss of time lie or
his men might suffer if he came up, but he would not do it. The maue of the
studeuts were Martin and Dixon. (He went over a rigmarole story abont what
the students said to him)

Mr., MarTIN wished the chairman to say whether the fact of offering to pay
the man for loss of time while giving evidence could be construed into bribery.

The CBAIRMAN made no definite reply, but Dr. HaLLowseLL said it wasa
clear case of bribery.

One of the patients here spoke at some length and with great flucncy in re-
gard to the kindness with which ibe patients were treated. He read a letter
which the patientshad drawn up inreply to theletter signed,Medical Student.
The letter replied to all the charges in a very cavalier way, denying most
positively every charge made agaiast the institution. It was signed by all
the male patients and was addressed to the Editor of the Colonist,for publi-
cation.

Dr. Scort then asked permission to make & few remarks. Having been
nearly six years attached ro an hospital he considered himeelf vot an inade
quate judge of the management of such an institution, and therefore felt that
he was entitled to offer bis opinion upon what had trapspired. A serious re-
flection had been made upon the conduct of the trustees, and a serious imapu-
tation had been made against the medical attendants. With regard to the
attack upon Burns he would say, that f1om the testimony adduced, had he no
other means of knowing, he was decidedly of opinion that Burns is o very
efficient person in his station ; that he was a man of a reugh exterior, but
capable of performing his duty in a most kindly and feeling mapner. The
statements made in regard to his treatment instead of showing that that
treatent was unwarranted, only satisfied him that the treatment ol the pa-
tient was extremely judicious. One remark was necessary in regard to the
size of the vessel in which the water was held which Burns was accused of
dashing so unfeelingly. It would be remembered that it was stated distinctly
that this vessel was no larger than the one in which the patient was bled;
that altered the complexion of the case entirely ; for they were first led to
believe that the man had cowme with a pail of water and dashed it on the
patient. He was satisfied that the vessel was as small (deseribed by one of
the witnesses) as a dipper, and, therefore, though the whole of its contents
bad been thrown upon the patient, it could net have interfered very mate-
rially with his comfort. With regard to the brutal mauner in which the man
was lifted, he contended that it could not have been otherwise done unless by
four men ; in fact it was done in the usual way. He therefore looked upoa
the charge against Burns not only as not substantisted, but utterly futile.
It appeared to him singularly unfortunate that some expressions shogld have
dropped from the young gentleman that brought these charges, stating that
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they found they ocoupied an inferfor position in this Institution, as being
students of a particular school of medicine, and yet they brought forward no
proof of such a thing ; but they all knew what effect such a belief was cal-
culatyd to have upon any man’s judgwent. With regard to Mrs, Donelly he
would say, that his whole experieuce, and it bad not been_small, forced him
to say taat she bad the qualities of the best nurse you could ever meet, guick
and abrupé in her maouer, but kind and feeling bearted—an uopolished
diamond in her way He was convinced that her character fully stood the
test of the iuvestigatiou, The ductr here alluded to the comparison that
had been drawn busween the ouatreal Hospital and the Jostitusion in which
they were, and stated that from his experience in London, Edinburgh, Dublin,
and other places, be was conviuced that ihis Hospital would stand comparison
with any bospital conducted i « similar way, and not attended by perstos
religiously devoted to the care of Mie sick. He then alluded to the charge
of vermin, and said that it was impo:sible in such institations, without a
regular supply of baths, to keep vermia away ; but, at the same time, he did
not consider that they existed to anything like the extent attempted to be
proved by the persons bringiny the charge. The charges against the house
surgeon required no comment. He would enly say that from a residence in
Toruuto of now 15 years, he had occasionally, in former years, heard great
complaints as to the slate of this institution, but from his own knowledge of
persoas who had, within the past two years, been in the Hogpital, some of
whom he had himself sent to it he had received s more flattering description
of the Institutionand of the treatment they experienced than he was prepared
to receive. He could point to several in-tances, 20d he had never any diffi-
culty in urging a patiznt to return to the Hospital =bo had Leen there before.
One grave charge, t0 his mind, had been brought agaiust the Institution, with
regard to the irregular attendauce of the medical men. This institution, he
conceived, was not only established for the velief of the indigent poor, but
for others who wished to pay for the treatment they received ; and while
established for these purpuscs, be believed it also is supported to afford an
opportunity for young professional men of acquiring knowledge and skill in
their profession, and the students, in his opinion, had a right to look for the
regular attepdance of the medical acn.  In that they seem to have been dis-
appointed. Buat it was rather remarkable that all the complaints had come
from the same source. While they had three medical schools in Toronto, the
old University, Trinity College and the Toronto School of Medicine, no com-
plaints had come frum either of these two lnstitutions—the old University or
Trinity College. They have all emanated from one quarter. It must have
appeared strange to the trastees that while these young gentlemen had their
proper representatives here, they seemed to have thought little of their at-
tendance ; they looked, in fact, for the services of those most capable of
affording instruction—the most efficient men counected with the Hospital.
He had no hesitation in saying that the medical officers were not all cbosen
on account of their professional standing, but because they were the repre-
sentatives of the different medical schools, and he had no doubt they chose
the best ; as it is, however, the delinqueats are those whose services are most
appreciated. This was & striking incident connected with the matter, He
begged to say, in conclusion, that the trustees had shown great patience and
forbearance, and had conducted the investigation with feelmgs of the strictest
impartiality. - They bad done everything in their power to elicit information
from both parties, and under this conviction he would propose a vote of
thanks to the trustees, for the impartial manner in which the investigation
had been conducted.

Mr. Lewvox said, whils agreeing with some of the remarks of Dr. Scott,
he would heg to remind him chat it was not because the students of Toroato
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College overlooked their own professors, that they found fault with the
others not attending. He would say that the general opinion of the students
in regard to these two gentlemen, Dr. Aikins and Dr. Wright, was tbis—that
they looked upon these two gentlemen as second to none connected with this
[astitution. They were as much pleased with Dr. Wright or Dr. Aiking as
with Dr. Bovell, but at the same time they considered they should have the
attendance of al} the medical gentlemen, in order to get as much experience
as they could while pr osecutmﬂ their studies.  With regard to the vessel in
which the water was brought by Burns, he would say that it was a tin vessel
capable of containing half a gallon of water or morc. Ho could say thot it
was half full at least, for the patient’s clothes were saturated witn tbe
water.

The following note was read as an appendix to the letter of the medieal
officers of the Hospital :—

From our personal knowledge of the Toronto General Hospital, as well as
from the evidence which has beeu adduced. during the prolonged ivvestiga-
tion into the charges contzived in a letrer signed - A Medical Student,” we
feel bow d in jusice to add our testimony "o the statements made in the
communication, exculpating the Hospital from those false charges.

(Signed) JOHN SCOTT, M.D., M.RCSL.
JOHN GRANT, L. & PSG.
W. HALLOWELL, #.D.. M.R.C.3., Edin.
F. M. RUSSELL, M.D., M.R.C.3., Eng.
J. RICHARDSON, \ID, M RCS, Eng.
N. BETHUNE, M D., 0.8, Eng.
GORNELIUS JAS. PH]LBRIM\ FR.CS.

Dr. HavLoweLL having been called to the cbair, awarded the thaoks of the
meeting to the trustees for their impartial investigation.

Dr. CLAREE then produced a number of letters in veference to character
from Mr. G. P. Ridout, Mr. Gamble, Dr. O’Brien, the Lady Superior of St.
Joseph’s Convent, Rev. Dr. Baldwin, Rev. Mr. Grasett, &c.. all spesking in
the most complimentary terms of the kindness, urbanity and attention of Dr.
Clarke. A similar testimony was paid in favor of the orderly Burns.

The proceedings closed at 9 o’clock on Saturday night, having occupied
three days.




